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Directors' Report

Principal activities

Review of business developments and financial position

List of principal risks and uncertainties

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

The managers consider the following key risks to its business:

Loss of key personnel. Given the current size of its operations, the Company does not have a substitute for every key staff member. However, the key portfolio managers

are also the owners of the Company so the risk of loss of personnel affecting the performance is limited.

Exchange rate risk. Although sub-funds invest into currencies other than base currency of a particular share class, exchange rate fluctuations related to such exposures

are being hedged, mainly those in CZK and USD. The exchange rate exposures are therefore limited. The most vulnerable to this risk is Metatron Global Macro Fund.

Redemption by a major investor. Concentration risk affects mainly Metatron Global Macro Fund, but would not affect the other funds as the investor base is diversified.

Loss of a major distributor. At the moment, the Company has just one key external distributor. Its departure could negatively affect the assets under management. The

Directors are trying to sign contracts with more distributors in an attempt to diversify or reduce dependency.

Risk from investing into OTC derivatives. The Company invests into OTC derivatives only on a limited basis and in cases where investment strategy cannot be

materialized through  investment into exchange-traded derivatives.

Despite the pandemic, the Company registered continued interest from High Net Worth Individuals both directly but also through a number of distributors. Promotional activities are

being increasingly focused on cooperation with distributors. Portfolio managers and directors will, however, continue developing their individual promotional efforts. Obtaining the

AIFM licence followed by the notification in several EU countries enabled the Company to further broaden the promotional activities. Regionally, the core of the distribution will stay

in the Czech Republic and Slovakia. 

The Directors continue to identify and monitor the key risks and take steps to mitigate them and their potential negative impact.

Directors' Report

The Company had three funds as of 30 June 2022 – namely Metatron Global Macro Fund (MGMF), Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity

Fund)  (MSE) and Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund (MLTE).

During the twelve months under review, the Company has registered from its operations a net decrease in assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders amounting

to €4,994,358. Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders as at 30 June 2022 thus reached a total of €177,607,122. The total net assets attributable to

redeemable participating shareholders increased from €151.3 million in 2021 to €177.6 million in 2022. This increase was mainly due to the positive performance of MLTE during the

period as well as the significant inflows of new capital sourced from a number of investors to MLTE.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Metatron Capital SICAV plc (the “Funds” or the “Company”) is a collective investment scheme established and licensed and regulated by the Malta Financial Services Authority

having Licence Number CIS/177H under the Investment Services Act, 1994 (Chapter 370, Laws of Malta) as a Professional Investor Fund under the laws of Malta, having company

registration number SV 177, with its registered office situated at Vision Exchange Building, Territorials Street, Zone 1, Central Business District, Birkikara CBD 1070, Malta. The

Funds are self-managed and the overall investment strategy and parameters for the current Funds are determined by the Company’s Investment Committee during regular

meetings held periodically in Malta.

The implementation of the Company’s investment strategy and day-to-day management of the Funds has been assigned by the Board in terms of a written agreement to the

authorised Portfolio Managers. The usual risk management procedures involving the proper monitoring of risks and sensitivities are performed on a daily basis.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Directors are pleased to present the tenth Annual Report of Metatron Capital SICAV plc covering the year ended 30 June 2022.

On the administrative side, the outsourcing of additional support to Portfolio Managers and internal development of tools continued covering a range of activities, fine-tuning current

operational tools and supporting and improving the investment processes. Directors have also done the review of Depositary Sparkasse Bank Malta as its key services provider

with the special focus on safekeeping and segregation of assets. The bank has prepared a special memo in this regard which was reviewed by the Metatron legal counsel.            

            

ii)                   Remuneration Derogation – Granted on 5 May 2021 and expires on 18 November 2022.

The directors and founder shareholders are also well aware of the fact that many people have been affected negatively by the pandemic. That is why founder shareholders and

directors have decided to make donations from Company profits to four selected registered charity organizations to try to mitigate the negative impact of the pandemic.

The Company has received the following derogations from MFSA:

i)                    Internal Audit Derogation – Granted on 7 July 2020 and expires on 30 June 2023; and

Major market downturn. All sub-funds of the Company have at least one market-neutral share-class which is being hedged against equity beta risk. However, this hedging

might not be perfect or added at the right time. The most vulnerable to this risk is Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund.

Emerging market risk. Although none of the funds specifically target emerging markets, some assets of the sub-funds can be invested in emerging markets, particularly

Eastern and Central Europe. These are mainly fixed-income investments. The risk is well monitored and managed thanks to extensive knowledge of these markets by the

portfolio managers.

Interest rate risk. The Company monitors the interest rate risks very closely and manages them actively. However, given the exposure to fixed interest instruments, a

sudden increase in interest rates can affect the value of the portfolio negatively. The most vulnerable to this risk is Metatron Global Macro Fund.

Credit risk. Some of the sub-funds might be exposed to investment instruments with below-grade rating or no credit rating at all. However, this risk is actively monitored. It

is not a part of investment policy of any sub-fund to derive a material part of its return from credit exposure.

During the financial year under review, the composition of the Investment Committee and the composition of the Board of Directors has not changed. The Directors of the

Company who held office during the year under review are listed on page 2.
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Manager's Report 

Funds overview and review of performance

Metatron Global Macro Fund

Juraj Podracký

Portfolio Manager

Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity Fund)

Aleš Vávra
Portfolio Manager

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The performance in fiscal year 2021/2022 was exceptional for MSE. The main driver which stood behind almost 50% return was a change in the Fund’s objective and its

transformation to Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity). As such the Fund increased its net short exposure and participated on the broad market sell-offs. The gains

came mainly from carefully picked single stock short positions in companies identified as fraud, which inaccurately or even falsely inform their shareholders about the actual state of

affairs. The list includes companies such as Cassava Sciences, Carvana, Grenke AG, Ebix Inc or South African bank Capitec.

In the fiscal year 2021/2022 the three Funds managed under Metatron Capital SICAV plc recorded a mixed

performance. Metatron Global Macro Fund (“MGMF”) has beaten its benchmark (1Y Euribor + 4% p.a.)

and returned 7.95%. Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity Fund)

(“MSE”) returned a stunning 49.42%. Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund (“MLTE”) showed a negative return

of -9.20% as the global equity indices tumbled. The historical performance for each fiscal year can be

viewed in the table on the right. For each Fund the comment by portfolio manager is provided below,

followed by NAV chart and a detailed month-by-month performance table.

MGMF experienced a fruitful fiscal year. Bulk of the gains came from the 1st quarter of 2022 when the

Fund participated on strong movements in oil price via oil futures, options and stocks of oil companies. Our

conviction from last year, that the FED was behind the curve and would raise the rates sooner than

markets expected, materialized and lead to high returns on our positions in US Treasuries. The Fund’s

performance stayed positive despite the difficult and very volatile market conditions throughout the fiscal

year.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Manager's Report

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

2011             -0.02% -0.14% 0.16% 0.17% -0.28% 0.36% 0.24% 

2012 1.75% 0.62% 0.82% 0.22% -1.85% 1.37% -0.75% 1.13% 1.74% 1.68% 1.30% 1.91% 10.31% 

2013 1.89% 0.11% -0.50% 0.16% 1.32% -0.55% 0.49% 0.28% 1.07% 1.50% 1.91% 1.76% 9.83% 

2014 -2.68% 3.03% -0.80% -1.14% 1.95% 0.46% -1.34% 0.77% 1.32% 0.26% 1.42% -0.26% 2.88% 

2015 3.83% 1.34% 3.36% -0.76% 0.44% -1.60% 2.91% -1.58% -0.33% 0.62% -0.18% -0.25% 7.87% 

2016 0.23% 0.15% 0.49% 0.56% 0.67% -1.14% 0.85% 1.48% -0.60% 0.15% 2.83% 2.11% 8.01% 

2017 -0.36% 1.34% -0.23% 0.25% 0.63% 0.66% 0.12% -0.28% 0.04% 1.83% -0.02% -0.84% 3.15% 

2018 1.48% -0.18% -0.86% -0.82% 4.13% -1.36% 1.41% 0.71% -0.35% -3.33% -3.01% -2.03% -4.36% 

2019 2.37% 1.58% -0.57% 2.01% -1.79% 0.93% 0.34% 0.26% -0.71% 0.30% -0.83% 0.39% 4.29% 

2020 -2.93% -4.72% -6.79% 2.00% -0.05% 1.64% 2.94% -  0.94% -  -  6.49% -1.15% 

2021 -  -  8.43% -  -  2.44% -  -  -0.92% -  -  2.57% 12.89% 

2022 -  -  9.21% -  -  -2.73%             6.22% 

 

 

Fiscal 
year 

MGMF MLSE MLTE 

2011/2012  3.17%     

2012/2013  9.80%     

2013/2014  7.97% 8.17%   

2014/2015  8.96% 10.91% 23.00% 

2015/2016  2.11% 0.45% -0.14% 

2016/2017  9.44% 1.87% 17.46% 

2017/2018  3.17% -3.86% 16.13% 

2018/2019  -2.26% -7.66% 9.40% 

2019/2020  -10.91% 4.13% 5.14% 

2020/2021  22.91% 2.45% 42.13% 

2021/2022  7.95% 49.42% -9.20% 

5



Manager's Report (continued)

Funds overview and review of performance (continued)

Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund

Juraj Podracký
Portfolio Manager

As a Fund with 100% net long exposure, MLTE’s performance is heavily correlated with the performance of major world equity indices. The market sell-offs in the second half of the

fiscal year resulted in the S&P 500 index entering bear market territory in June 2022, which weighed down on Fund’s return. During the period, however, the portfolio manager

succeeded in outperforming the Fund’s internal benchmark (weighted index of 65% S&P 500 and 35% Euro Stoxx 50) by roughly 3 percentage points so the Fund’s performance in

fiscal year 2021/2022 was overall good.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Manager's Report

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

2013             -0.06% -0.31% 0.34% 2.21% 1.58% 2.02% 5.90% 

2014 -1.47% 2.93% -0.99% -1.13% 2.86% 0.02% -0.52% 0.92% -0.82% 0.55% 3.10% 0.46% 5.91% 

2015 0.58% 4.39% 1.30% 0.39% 0.16% 0.01% 2.92% -0.04% -1.07% 2.25% -0.93% -0.62% 9.59% 

2016 -0.51% 1.80% -0.89% -1.00% 0.15% -1.49% 0.31% 0.31% 0.46% -0.92% -1.02% -1.95% -4.71% 

2017 0.65% 0.74% 1.21% 0.70% 2.08% -0.66% 0.54% -0.39% 0.26% -0.19% -0.67% -0.20% 4.11% 

2018 -0.23% 0.85% -0.20% -1.14% -1.10% -1.43% 0.75% -3.97% -0.23% 1.24% 1.18% 0.90% -3.44% 

2019 -2.62% -0.98% -0.29% -2.55% 1.60% -2.78% 1.69% -0.39% -1.03% -0.05% -2.90% 0.16% -9.81% 

2020 -0.64% 1.46% 0.20% 2.40% 0.63% 2.66% -2.72% 0.11% -1.16% -0.02% 2.01% 0.97% 5.92% 

2021 -1.37% 0.46% 2.41% 0.19% 1.43% 0.24% 0.24% -0.16% 5.42% 2.56% 1.63% 2.45% 16.43% 

2022 3.88% -0.79% -0.19% 16.91% 1.60% 8.56%             20.23% 

 

Year Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

2014                 -1.53% 3.18% 5.86% 1.49% 9.16% 

2015 3.12% 7.39% 1.27% -0.94% 3.25% -1.77% 3.14% -5.69% -2.55% 6.63% 0.79% -1.91% 12.59% 

2016 -6.60% 0.81% 4.56% 0.93% 2.01% -1.39% 2.84% 0.31% -0.20% -3.87% 2.27% 0.05% 1.19% 

2017 2.71% 5.07% 1.51% 3.58% 3.29% -1.01% 0.11% 0.10% 3.44% 4.33% 2.03% 0.59% 28.76% 

2018 3.88% -2.73% -1.08% -0.30% 7.02% -1.89% 3.27% 3.01% -1.71% -7.94% 1.52% -10.11% -8.10% 

2019 9.65% 5.17% 1.63% 5.31% -3.77% 4.86% 1.08% -0.69% 0.55% 0.64% 4.32% 2.16% 34.82% 

2020 -2.18% -7.25% -9.86% 10.42% 5.91% 1.55% 5.89% 3.18% -1.96% -1.95% 10.15% 4.51% 17.43% 

2021 0.69% 2.05% 5.65% 4.98% 1.11% 2.01% 2.76% 2.85% -4.43% 6.83% -2.72% 4.72% 29.22% 

2022 -5.68% -2.04% 2.35% -5.14% 2.29% -9.99%             -17.40% 
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Independent auditor’s report  
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 

Report on the audit of the financial statements  

Our opinion  
 
In our opinion: 
 
• The financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Metatron Capital 

SICAV p.l.c. (‘the company’) as at 30 June 2022, and of the company’s financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the EU; and 

• The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese 
Companies Act (Cap. 386). 

 

Our opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Board of Directors. 

 
What we have audited 
 
Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c.’s financial statements, set out on pages 17 to 55, comprise: 
 

• the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022; 

• the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended; 

• the statement of changes in equity attributable to founder shares for the year then ended; 

• the statement of changes in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders for the 
year then ended; 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 

• the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

 

Basis for opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 
Independence 
 
We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements of the Accountancy Profession 
(Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Malta. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these Codes.  
 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that we have not provided non-audit services that are 

prohibited under Article 18A of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281). 

 
We did not provide any non-audit services to the company during the year ended 30 June 2022. 

 

Our audit approach 
 

Overview 

 

 • Overall materiality: 1% to 2.5% of net asset value (“NAV”) for the company’s sub-
funds. 

• The company is a self-managed multi-fund public limited liability investment 
company with variable share capital which had three segregated sub-funds 
during the year ended 30 June 2022, each constituting a patrimony separate 
from one another.  
 

• The company’s accounting is delegated to the Administrator, Apex Fund Services 

(Malta) Limited, which maintains its own accounting records and controls, and 
reports to the Investment Committee, Portfolio Managers and the Directors.  

 
• We tailored the scope of our audit taking into account the types of investments 

held by the sub-funds, the involvement of the third parties referred to above, the 
accounting processes and controls and the industry in which the company 
operates. 

 

 • Valuation and existence of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

 
  

 

 

 

Materiality 

Audit 
scope 

Key audit 
matters 
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in 
the financial statements. In particular, we considered where the Directors made subjective judgements; for 
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering 
future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management 
override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of 
bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud. 
 

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion on the 

financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the company, the accounting processes 

and controls, and the industry in which the company operates. 

 
Materiality 
 
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. Misstatements 
may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 
 
Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, including 
the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below. These, together with 
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of 
our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the 
financial statements as a whole. 
 

Overall materiality and 
how we determined it 

1% to 2.5% of net asset value (“NAV”) for the company’s sub-funds. 

Rationale for the 

materiality benchmark 
applied 

Net assets is considered to be an appropriate benchmark as we 

consider this to be one of the principal considerations for investors 

of the Fund in assessing the financial performance of the Fund. We 
also believe that this provides an appropriate and consistent year-

on-year basis for our audit. We chose 1% to 2.5%, based on 

professional judgement, noting that it is also within the range of 
commonly accepted asset-related thresholds that we consider 
acceptable.  

 
We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit 
above 0.05% of each of the sub-fund’s NAV as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, 
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons. 
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 
Key audit matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
 

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter 

Valuation and existence of financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss 

As described in Note 4 to the Financial 

Statements, the investment portfolios as at 
year-end comprised listed equity, debt 

securities, options, future options, futures, 
swaps and forwards. 

  

We focused on the valuation and existence of 

financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss because they represent the principal 
element of the net asset value, which is the most 

significant key performance indicator of the 

company and has a direct effect on the 
recognition of gains and losses on financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss.   

 

We tested the valuation of the financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss by agreeing the prices 
used in the valuation to independent third party 
sources.  

 

We tested the existence of the investment portfolio by 
agreeing the holdings for financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss to independent custodian and 
prime broker confirmations.  

 

We also considered the company’s disclosures for 

compliance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards as adopted by the EU. 

 

Our testing did not identify any material differences. 
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 

Other information 
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
management and administration section, the directors’ report, the manager’s report, the directors’ 
responsibility for the financial statements and further information (but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon).  
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon except as explicitly stated within the Report on other legal 
and regulatory requirements.   
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements 
 
The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act 
(Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.  
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements - continued 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this 
statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats 
or safeguards applied. 
 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 

 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements  
 
The Annual Report and Financial Statements 2022 contains other areas required by legislation or 
regulation on which we are required to report.  The Directors are responsible for these other areas.  
 
The table below sets out these areas presented within the Annual Report, our related responsibilities and 
reporting, in addition to our responsibilities and reporting reflected in the Other information section of our 
report. Except as outlined in the table, we have not provided an audit opinion or any form of assurance.  
 

Area of the Annual 

Report and Financial 
Statements 2022 and 

the related Directors’ 
responsibilities 

Our responsibilities Our reporting 

Directors’ report 

(on pages 3 to 4)  

The Maltese Companies 
Act (Cap. 386) requires the 

directors to prepare a 

Directors’ report, which 
includes the contents 

required by Article 177 of 
the Act and the Sixth 
Schedule to the Act. 

We are required to consider 

whether the information given in 
the Directors’ report for the 

financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared 

is consistent with the financial 
statements.      

 

We are also required to express 

an opinion as to whether the 

Directors’ report has been 
prepared in accordance with the 
applicable legal requirements.  

 

In addition, we are required to 

state whether, in the light of the 
knowledge and understanding of 

the Company and its 

environment obtained in the 
course of our audit, we have 

identified any material 
misstatements in the Directors’ 

report, and if so to give an 

indication of the nature of any 
such misstatements. 

In our opinion:  

• the information given in the 

Directors’ report for the 
financial year for which the 

financial statements are 

prepared is consistent with 
the financial statements; and 

• the Directors’ report has 
been prepared in accordance 

with the Maltese Companies 
Act (Cap. 386). 

 

We have nothing to report to you 

in respect of the other 

responsibilities, as explicitly 
stated within the Other 
information section. 
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Independent auditor’s report - continued 
To the Shareholders of Metatron Capital SICAV p.l.c. 
 

Area of the Annual 

Report and Financial 

Statements 2022 and 

the related Directors’ 
responsibilities 

Our responsibilities Our reporting 

 Other matters on which we are 
required to report by exception  

We also have responsibilities under 
the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) 
to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have 

not been kept, or returns 

adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not 
visited by us. 

• the financial statements are not 

in agreement with the accounting 
records and returns. 

• we have not received all the 

information and explanations  
which, to the best of our 

knowledge and belief, we require 
for our audit.  

We have nothing to report to 

you in respect of these 
responsibilities. 

 







Notes to the Statement of Financial Position

Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

Notes shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022

Assets € € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 -                            31,877,709              1,205,692             129,807,223         

Cash and cash equivalents 6a 583,942                3,974                       326,174                955,160                

Amounts due from brokers 6b -                            7,959,302                18,039,802           15,999,974           

Trade and other receivables 7 708,699                10,655                     93,290                  -                            

Prepayments 3,000                    -                               -                            -                            

Total assets 1,295,641             39,851,640              19,664,958           146,762,357         

Equity

Share capital 10 130,330                -                               -                            -                            

Retained earnings 765,509                -                               -                            -                            

Total equity 895,839                -                               -                            -                            

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4 -                            736,215                   6,726,368             11,924,536           

Amounts due to brokers 6b -                            481,924                   895,110                5,843,051             

Management and Performance Fees payable 9 -                            147,832                   46,495                  314,962                

Subscriptions pending -                            -                               417,452                935,513                

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 399,802                68,663                     30,568                  103,144                

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders 11 -                            38,417,006              11,548,965           127,641,151         

Total liabilities 399,802                39,851,640              19,664,958           146,762,357         

Total equity and liabilities 1,295,641             39,851,640              19,664,958           146,762,357         

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

As at 30 June 2022

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.
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Notes to the Statement of Financial Position

Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

Notes shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021

Assets € € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 -                            31,341,265              2,623,554             103,769,284         

Cash and cash equivalents 6a 185,967                730,250                   7,936,260             2,921,173             

Amounts due from brokers 6b -                            8,923,721                2,978,424             6,214,067             

Trade and other receivables 7 694,811                6,451                       38,616                  -                            

Prepayments 3,000                    -                               -                            -                            

Total assets 883,778                41,001,687              13,576,854           112,904,524         

Equity

Share capital 10 129,830                -                               -                            -                            

Retained earnings 509,296                -                               -                            -                            

Total equity 639,126                -                               -                            -                            

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4 -                            864,698                   2,064,167             1,214,728             

Amounts due to brokers 6b -                            4,102,300                5,382                    4,350,909             

Management and performance fees payable 9 -                            284,502                   42,701                  211,674                

Subscriptions pending -                            725,291                   -                            2,144,019             

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 244,652                59,101                     21,369                  132,808                

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders 11 -                            34,965,795              11,443,235           104,850,386         

Total liabilities 244,652                41,001,687              13,576,854           112,904,524         

Total equity and liabilities 883,778                41,001,687              13,576,854           112,904,524         

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:

As at 30 June 2022

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.
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Statement of comprehensive income

The Company The Company

1/07/2021 1/07/2020

to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2021

Notes € €

Income

Management and performance fees income -                            -                               

Interest income on loans receivable 13 -                            -                               

Other income 22,738                  300                          

Net (loss)/income from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 8 (576,187)               35,036,392              

Total Income (553,449)               35,036,692              

Other foreign exchange gains 1,286,160             463,404                   

732,711                35,500,096              

Operating expenses

Performance fees 9 331,654                109,084                   

Commissions 578,758                361,296                   

Bank charges 616,235                184,656                   

Administration fees 9 151,059                102,908                   

Professional fees 9 819,259                81,245                     

Introducers' fees 516,705                274,824                   

General and other miscellaneous expenses 9 1,207,142             1,505,613                

Total operating expenses 4,220,812             2,619,626                

Net (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders (4,994,358)            32,031,419              

Net profit for the year attributable to founder shareholders 1,506,257             849,051                   

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Statement of Comprehensive Income

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. These also include more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the 

holders of the investor shares, in the next two pages.
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Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021

to to to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022

Notes € € € €

Income

Management and performance fees income 2,505,121             -                               -                            -                            

Expenses recharged to sub-funds 909,687                -                               -                            -                            

Other income 22,738                  -                               -                            -                            

Net income/(loss) from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 8 -                            4,452,478                4,450,496             (9,479,161)            

Total Income 3,437,546             4,452,478                4,450,496             (9,479,161)            

Other foreign exchange gains -                            559,175                   600,056                126,929                

3,437,546             5,011,653                5,050,552             (9,352,232)            

Operating expenses

Performance fees 9 -                            947,620                   10,860                  -                            

Management fees 9 -                            548,174                   160,526                1,169,595             

Commissions -                            61,360                     33,130                  484,268                

Bank charges 2,866                    35,171                     434,383                143,815                

Administration fees 9 14,300                  25,883                     12,456                  98,420                  

Professional fees 9 438,932                182,725                   70,338                  127,264                

Introducers' fees 516,705                -                               -                            -                            

General and other miscellaneous expenses 9 958,486                300,455                   32,344                  825,544                

Total operating expenses 1,931,289             2,101,388                754,037                2,848,906             

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders -                            2,910,265                4,296,515             (12,201,138)          

Net profit for the year attributable to founder shareholders 1,506,257             -                               -                            -                            

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:

Notes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020

to to to to

30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021

Notes € € € €

Income

Management and performance fees income 1,461,452             -                               -                            -                            

Expenses recharged to sub-funds 858,976                -                               -                            -                            

Dividends 300                       -                               -                            -                            

8 -                            7,650,836                760,270                26,625,286           

Total Income 2,320,728             7,650,836                760,270                26,625,286           

Other foreign exchange gains/(losses) -                            452,972                   (164,410)               174,842                

2,320,728             8,103,808                595,860                26,800,128           

Operating expenses

Performance fees 9 -                            311,665                   -                            -                            

Management fees 9 -                            471,268                   172,694                614,908                

Commissions -                            52,788                     12,599                  295,909                

Bank charges 2,057                    72,320                     58,318                  51,961                  

Administration fees 9 12,000                  25,927                     12,271                  52,710                  

Professional fees 9 353,186                52,148                     8,293                    6,227                    

Introducers' fees 274,824                -                               -                            -                            

General and other miscellaneous expenses 9 829,610                379,902                   102,069                714,400                

Total operating expenses 1,471,677             1,366,018                366,244                1,736,115             

Net increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders -                            6,737,790                229,616                25,064,013           

Net profit for the year attributable to founder shareholders 849,051                -                               -                            -                            

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:

Net income from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.
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Statements of Changes in Equity attributable to founder shares

Share capital Retained earnings Total Equity

€ € €

Balance at 1 July 2020 129,830                373,247                   503,077                

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -                            849,051                   849,051                

Transactions with founder shareholders

Dividends -                            (115,932)                  (115,932)               

Transactions with preferred shareholders

Dividends -                            (543,070)                  (543,070)               

Transactions with associate shareholders

Dividends -                            (54,000)                    (54,000)                 

Balance at 30 June 2021 129,830                509,296                   639,126                

Balance at 1 July 2021 129,830                509,296                   639,126                

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -                            1,506,257                1,506,257             

Transactions with associate shareholders

Issue of shares 500                       -                               500                       

Dividends -                            (1,250,044)               (1,250,044)            

Balance at 30 June 2022 130,330                765,509                   895,839                

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Statements of Changes in Equity attributable to founder shares
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

The The

Company Company

1/07/2021 1/07/2020

to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2021

€ €

Balance at the beginning of the year 151,259,416         87,798,696              

Issuance of redeemable participating shares 48,090,183           37,760,165              

Redemption of redeemable participating shares (16,748,119)          (6,330,864)               

182,601,480         119,227,997            

Net (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders resulting from operations (4,994,358)            32,031,419              

Balance at the end of the year 177,607,122         151,259,416            

Short Equity

(formerly 

Global known as Long Long-Term

Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021

to to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022

€ € €

Balance at the beginning of the year 34,965,795              11,443,235           104,850,386         

Issuance of redeemable participating shares 3,128,409                -                            44,961,774           

Redemption of redeemable participating shares (2,587,463)               (4,190,785)            (9,969,871)            

35,506,741              7,252,450             139,842,289         

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders 2,910,265                4,296,515             (12,201,138)          

Balance at the end of the year 38,417,006              11,548,965           127,641,151         

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the prevalent local practice.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. These also include more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the 

holders of the investor shares, in the next one pages.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Short Equity

(formerly 

Global known as Long Long-Term

Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020

to to to

30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021

€ € €

Balance at the beginning of the year 29,347,585              12,917,530           45,533,581           

Issuance of redeemable participating shares -                               -                            37,760,165           

Redemption of redeemable participating shares (1,119,580)               (1,703,911)            (3,507,373)            

28,228,005              11,213,619           79,786,373           

Net increase in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders 6,737,790                229,616                25,064,013           

Balance at the end of the year 34,965,795              11,443,235           104,850,386         

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Notes to the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the prevalent local practice.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc
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Statement of cash flows

The Company The Company 

1/07/2021 1/07/2020

to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2021

€ €

Cash flows from operating activities

(3,488,101)            32,880,470              

Adjustments for:

Net loss/(income) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 576,187                (35,036,392)             

Net payments on purchases and sales of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (10,489,182)          (17,105,941)             

Other foreign exchange gains (1,286,160)            (463,404)                  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables (72,766)                 (222,639)                  

Due from broker (23,882,866)          8,591,559                

Due to broker (1,238,506)            (11,713,755)             

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 114,658                423,570                   

Net cash used in operating activities (39,766,736)          (22,646,532)             

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable participating shares 48,090,183           37,413,450              

Subscriptions received in advance (1,516,345)            2,869,310                

Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares (16,748,119)          (6,330,867)               

Proceeds from issuance of associate shares 500                       -                               

Payment of dividends (1,250,044)            (713,002)                  

Net cash generated from financing activities 28,576,175           33,238,891              

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,190,561)          10,592,359              

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,773,650           717,887                   

Effects of foreign exchange movement 1,286,160             463,404                   

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,869,249             11,773,650              

Net (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to founder shareholders and redeemable participating shareholders 

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

The Company The Company

1/07/2021 1/07/2020

to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2021

€ €

Dividends received 2,089,406             1,104,456                

Interest received 1,059,210             1,212,835                

Dividends paid (17,886)                 (17,758)                    

Interest paid (87,809)                 (168,690)                  

Notes to the Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. These also include more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the 

holders of the investor shares, in the next four pages.
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Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021

to to to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022

€ € € €

Cash flows from operating activities

Net increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to founder shareholders and redeemable participating shareholders 1,506,257             2,910,265                4,296,515             (12,201,138)          

Adjustments for:

Net fair value (income)/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss -                            (4,452,478)               (4,450,496)            9,479,161             

Net receipts/(payments) on purchases and sales of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss -                            3,787,551                10,530,559           (24,807,292)          

Other foreign exchange gains -                            (559,175)                  (600,056)               (126,929)               

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables (13,888)                 (4,204)                      (54,674)                 -                            

Due from broker -                            964,419                   (15,061,378)          (9,785,907)            

Due to broker -                            (3,620,376)               889,728                1,492,142             

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 155,149                (127,108)                  12,993                  73,624                  

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 1,647,519             (1,101,106)               (4,436,809)            (35,876,339)          

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable participating shares -                            3,128,409                -                            44,961,774           

Subscriptions received in advance -                            (725,291)                  417,452                (1,208,506)            

Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares -                            (2,587,463)               (4,190,785)            (9,969,871)            

Proceeds from issuance of associate shares 500                       -                               -                            -                            

Payment of dividends (1,250,044)            -                               -                            -                            

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (1,249,544)            (184,345)                  (3,773,333)            33,783,397           

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 397,975                (1,285,451)               (8,210,142)            (2,092,942)            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 185,967                730,250                   7,936,260             2,921,173             

Effects of foreign exchange movement -                            559,175                   600,056                126,929                

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 583,942                3,974                       326,174                955,160                

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.

Notes to the Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021 1/07/2021

to to to to

30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022 30/06/2022

€ € € €

Dividends received -                            93,748                     150,767                1,844,891             

Interest received -                            1,044,841                7,032                    7,337                    

Dividends paid -                            -                               (17,886)                 -                            

Interest paid -                            (40,240)                    (1,011)                   (46,558)                 

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Notes to the Statement of cash flows

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:
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Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020

to to to to

30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021

€ € € €

Cash flows from operating activities

849,051                6,737,790                229,616                25,064,013           

Adjustments for:

Net fair value income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss -                            (7,650,836)               (760,270)               (26,625,286)          

Net receipts/(payments) on purchases and sales of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss -                            5,747,870                6,179,802             (29,033,613)          

Other foreign exchange (gains)/losses -                            (452,972)                  164,410                (174,842)               

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Trade and other receivables (305,481)               103,060                   (20,218)                 -                            

Due from broker -                            8,454,435                4,021,215             (3,884,091)            

Due to broker -                            (12,467,730)             (6,623)                   760,597                

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 69,241                  199,641                   (5,769)                   160,458                

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 612,811                671,258                   9,802,163             (33,732,764)          

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable participating shares -                            -                               -                            37,413,450           

Subscriptions received in advance -                            725,291                   -                            2,144,019             

Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares -                            (1,119,580)               (1,703,911)            (3,507,376)            

Payment of dividends (713,002)               -                               -                            -                            

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (713,002)               (394,289)                  (1,703,911)            36,050,093           

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (100,191)               276,969                   8,098,252             2,317,329             

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 286,158                309                          2,418                    429,002                

Effects of foreign exchange movement -                            452,972                   (164,410)               174,842                

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 185,967                730,250                   7,936,260             2,921,173             

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to the Statement of cash flows

The following table provides more detailed information about the amounts attributable to the founder shareholders and the amounts attributable to the holders of the investor shares.  This information is being presented in accordance with the 

prevalent local practice.

Net increase in net assets attributable to founder shareholders and redeemable participating shareholders 

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:
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Supplementary information on cash flows from operating activities

Short Equity

Attributable (formerly 

to founder Global known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Macro Short Equity) Equity

1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020 1/07/2020

to to to to

30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021 30/06/2021

€ € € €

Dividends received -                            26,697                     98,244                  979,515                

Interest received -                            1,085,361                116,440                11,034                  

Dividends paid -                            -                               (12,407)                 (5,351)                   

Interest paid -                            (107,431)                  (16,554)                 (44,705)                 

The above information is an integral part of the notes to these financial statements.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to the Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Attributable to shareholders of the investor shares in:
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1 Reporting Entity

Metatron Long-Short Equity (“Long-Short Equity”) changed its name to Metatron Short Equity (“Short Equity”) Fund on 27 May 2022.

Global Macro

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Long-Term Equity

The objective of the Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-Short Equity Fund) is to achieve substantial capital appreciation through fundamentally driven,

value oriented investing in listed financial instruments including shares, ETFs, options, futures, fixed income and foreign exchange instruments. The Sub-Fund may invest in real

estate via ETFs, REITs or any similar instruments listed on recognised stock exchanges.

In accordance with the relevant local practice, the financial statement caption amounts in the primary financial statements are also presented in a segregated format: those amounts 

‘attributable to the founder shareholders’, and those amounts ‘attributable to shareholders of the investor shares’ (segregated by the specific sub-fund). Also in accordance with

local practice, where appropriate, disclosures in the notes in the financial statements are segregated by sub-fund. Such presentation of the financial statements is nonetheless not a 

statutory requirement.

Two of the Company's sub-funds, namely Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) and Long-Term Equity are listed on the Malta Stock Exchange. Long-Term Equity sub-

fund was admitted to trading on the Malta Stock Exchange on 30 June 2021.

Investment Strategy 

Investment Objective

The Sub-Fund may seek to shelter its portfolio from market movements by hedging its investment positions on an individual or consolidated basis from time to time. In order to

ensure a minimum risk element, the Sub-Fund will focus on managing the depth of potential drawdown, and will adopt a clear set of rules to determine the maximum exposure in

view of the performance of the investment portfolio. 

The Sub-Fund mainly invests in listed financial instruments world-wide including emerging markets, particularly in bonds, equities, futures and options denominated in major or local

currencies. However, a strong emphasis will be given to the liquidity of the underlying positions. 

Investment Objective

Metatron Capital SICAV plc (“the Company”) is a collective investment scheme organized as an open-ended multi-fund public limited Company with variable share capital. The

Company was registered on 20 April 2011 under the Companies Act, 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Malta) and is licensed and regulated by the Malta Financial Services Authority

having Licence Number CIS/177H under the Investment Services Act, 1994 (Chapter 370, Laws of Malta) as a Professional Investor Fund. The Company was subseqently

converted into a self-managed Alternative Investment Fund (and licensed as) on 4 September 2018.

As at 30 June 2022 the Company had three (3) Sub-Funds, namely Metatron Global Macro Fund (“Global Macro”), Metatron Short Equity Fund (formerly known as Metatron Long-

Short Equity Fund) (“Short Equity”) and Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund (“Long-Term Equity”). 

The Company is the reporting entity and comprises all the activities of Metatron Capital SICAV plc as the entity with the separate legal personality. The Statutory Financial

Statements are those presented for the Company.  The sub-funds are an integral part of that entity, as these do not have separate legal personality.

Notes to Financial Statements

The Sub-Fund will not be targeting any particular industry sector or any particular geographical region. The regional and industry exposure will be driven by actual investment

opportunity as determined by the Portfolio Manager on the basis of fundamental valuations. The Sub-Fund aims to achieve its investment objective through a thorough

fundamentally driven research that will lead to identification of investment opportunities that meet specific investment criteria. These criteria include but are not limited to various

valuation metrics such as free cash flow, dividend yield and book value as well as return/risk potential of considered investments. The Sub-Fund will target medium to long term

holding period, however the Portfolio Manager might from time to time also engage in active short-term trading to eliminate the impact of sudden market fluctuations. For the

purpose of management of excess liquidity, the Sub-Fund may invest in listed corporate bonds. 

Investment Objective

Stocks that meet such criteria will be considered for purchase and held for longer investment horizons, ranging in average from a few quarters to a few years. The emphasis will be

put on long-term nature of shareholder value creation rather than on quarter-by-quarter management moves. Only companies demonstrating history of several years to decades of

above average value creation will be considered. However, the Sub-Fund will not be quantitative in its nature as a purchase decision will not be made automatically once the

Company meets the selected criteria. Qualitative review of management and industry will be made as a part of the portfolio selection process. The companies that no longer meet

the criteria either through actions by their managements or changes in their operating environment will be sold and removed from the list of suitable investments. 

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Sub-Fund will seek to attain its investment objective by adopting a capital appreciation investment approach with the aim of achieving capital appreciation through medium to

long-term fundamentally driven, value oriented investing techniques. The Sub-Fund will accordingly invest in a selected and diversified portfolio, including shares, ETFs, options,

futures, fixed income and foreign exchange instruments. 

Investment Strategy 

Any current liquidity might be deposited with banks on short to mid-term basis.

The objective of the Metatron Global Macro Fund is the maintenance of value and the achievement of a balanced long-term capital appreciation with downside protection. 

Each Sub-Fund has its own investment objective and strategy.

The Sub-Fund will employ fundamental bottom-up stock analysis to deliver the desired returns. The Portfolio Manager of the Sub-Fund will conduct thorough fundamental analysis

using proprietary quantitative fundamental criteria focused on balance sheet strength, operating margins, free cash flow generation and sustainability of revenues in order to identify

corporations with a long-term ability to deliver above-average shareholder returns. 

When holding assets denominated in currencies other than the Functional Currency of this Sub-Fund, the resultant currency exposure could be hedged, if determined necessary by

the Portfolio Manager. The strong emphasis will be given to liquidity of all investment positions.

Availability of suitable investments will influence the cash balance of the portfolio; however, the Sub-Fund is expected to be fully invested most of the times through the cycle. The

Sub-Fund will not target any particular industry sectors, categories of issuers or specific geographic locations. In spite of this, the bulk of the exposure will be coming from G7

countries.

The objective of Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund is to achieve long-term capital appreciation over the business cycle. To achieve this, the Sub-Fund will invest in equities listed on

major developed markets with an intended holding period of several years.

Investment Strategy 

Metatron Capital SICAV plc
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2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have also been prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1995 (Chapter 386, Laws of Malta). 

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Foreign currency translation

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities

-

-

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognition takes place on the trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe

established by the market concerned. Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date they are originated. 

Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”). All

references in these financial statements to IAS, IFRS or SIC/IFRIC interpretations refer to those adopted by the European Union.

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest ("SPPI").

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

All other financial assets of the Company are measured at FVTPL.

The Company maintains a separate account for each Fund, to which proceeds are credited, and against which expenses are charged. Upon redemption, shareholders are entitled

only to their proportion of the net assets held in the account relating to the Fund in which their participating shares are designated.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair

value.

Transactions and balances

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These financial statements are presented in euro, which is the Company's functional currency.

'Functional currency' is the currency of the primary environment in which the Company operates. If indicators of the primary economic environment are mixed, then management

uses its judgement to determine the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effect of underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Company's

investments and transactions are denominated in Euro, US dollars, Sterling, Swiss francs and other currencies. Subscriptions and redemptions of Investor Shares in Metatron

SICAV plc sub-funds are denominated in Euro, US Dollars and Czech Korona. The performance of the Company is measured and reported to investors in Euro. The expenses

(including management fees, custodian fees and administration fees) are denominated and paid mostly in Euro. Accordingly, management has determined that the functional

currency of the Company is Euro.

The accounting policies applied in these financial statements are the same as those applied in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2021 and have been

applied consistently throughout these financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-

measured. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at

that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at

the date the fair value was determined. Net foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are included in the

statement of comprehensive income, in the line item “Net income/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”. Net foreign exchange differences on

retranslation of other monetary assets and liabilities are included in the line item "Other foreign exchange gains/(losses)".

The Statement of Financial Position presents assets and liabilities in increasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish between current and non-current items. Financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in accordance with the Sub-Investment

Manager’s recommendations.  All other assets and liabilities are expected to be realised within one year.

Recognition and initial measurement

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in

any future periods affected.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year, as well as critical

judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are included in notes 4 and 5.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 

measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has determined that it has two business models.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

Classification (Continued)

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

Reclassifications

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Business model assessment

how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

Other business model: this includes debt securities, equity investments, investments in open-ended investment funds and derivatives.These financial assets are managed

and their performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cashflows;

leverage features;

prepayment and extension features;

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing

recognition of the assets.

Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase agreements. These

financial assets are held to collect contractual cash flow.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company were to change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all

affected financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised 

in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument.This includes assessing whether the financial asset

contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company

considers:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice. This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on earning contractual interest

income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or

realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features); and

features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Financial assets at 

FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income and expense and foreign 

exchange gains and losses, are recognised in 'net income/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Debt securities, equity investments, investments from open-ended investment funds and derivative financial instruments are included in this category.

Held for trading: securities sold short and derivative financial instruments

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of

money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and

administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held, the Company considers all of the relevant information about how the business is

managed, including:

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest income is recognised in 'interest income 

calculated using the effective interest method', foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in 'net foreign exchange loss' and impairment is 

recognised in 'impairment losses on financial instruments' in the statement of comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on derecongition is also 

recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers, loans and receivables from reverse sale and repurchase agreements are included in this 

category.

Financial assets at 

amortised cost

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at at amortised cost:

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

This includes balances due to brokers, payables under sale and repurchase agreements and redeemable shares.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and

supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's

historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased

significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to

the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Write-off

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Exchange-traded derivative instruments are valued on each relevant valuation date at the settlement price for such instruments on such market as at the relevant valuation date. If

such price is not available, such value shall be the probable realization value estimated with care and in good faith by the directors. Over-the-counter derivative instruments are

valued by the counterparty, which valuation will be verified monthly by the directors or their agents as persons independent of the counterparty. Forward foreign exchange contracts

are valued with reference to the prevailing market maker quotations, namely, the price at which a new forward contract of the same maturity could be undertaken or, if unavailable,

they will be valued by the counterparty at least monthly, which valuation will be verified by the directors or their agents as persons independent of the counterparty.

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the

principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The 'amortised cost' of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal

repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial

assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on their quoted market prices at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs

and adjusted for any tax effect on the maturity of such instruments. These instruments are priced at current mid-market prices. Management concluded that mid-market prices for

such instruments are representative of fair value.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Amortised cost measurement

Fair value measurement

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

Credit-impaired financial assets

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the

instrument is less than 12 months).

The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is equivalent to the globally understood definition of 'investment grade'.

The Company considers this to be BBB+ or higher per S&P Rating Agency. In case of non-rated counterparties, Company involves case-by-case operational assesment, based on

counterpart fundamentals, market conditions, and any other factors impacting such an assesment.

other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses ("ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

Impairment

Equities traded over-the-counter are valued at the last reported sale price on or within a reasonable range of days prior to the day of valuation quoted through any recognized

interdealer quotation system. Equities which are not listed on a stock exchange or traded over the-counter are valued at fair market value as established by the directors or its

agents.

Units or shares in open-ended investment schemes are valued at the latest available net asset value as quoted by such collective investment schemes. The latest available net

asset value will be the latest reported net asset value or, if unavailable or not available for the timely calculation of the valuation of the assets of the Company, the latest estimated

net asset value. Units or shares in closed-ended collective investment schemes will, if listed, quoted or traded on a regulated market, be valued at the latest trade price or a mid

quotation (or, if unavailable, a bid quotation) or, if unavailable or unrepresentative, the probable realization value as at the Valuation Date estimated with care and in good faith by

the directors or their agents. 

35



3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

3.4 Amounts due from/to brokers

3.5 Revenue recognition

3.6 Expenses

3.7 Redeemable shares

3.8 Segment reporting

3.9 New standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations were endorsed by the EU but are effective for periods beginning after 1 July 2022, and have not been

applied in preparing these financial statements:

• Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (amendment to IAS 1) - Not yet endorsed by the EU

None of these standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of their

initial application.

The redeemable shares for each sub-fund provide investors with the right to require redemption for cash at a value proportionate to the investor’s share in the sub-fund’s net

assets, at each monthly redemption date and also in the event of the Company’s liquidation. 

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

The Company has units listed on the Malta Stock Exchange, though that listing is primarily intended to facilitate the issue of units in the sub-funds. Transactions in all investor

shares are executed via the transfer agent and the transfer value of executed transactions is determined in accordance with the relevant prospectus of each sub-fund and is based

on the net assets per unit at each valuation date. However, as from 30 June 2021, the units of Long-Term Equity Fund were also admitted to trade on the Malta Stock Exchange

as an Exchange Traded Fund. Whilst the units have been formally admitted on the securities list of the Malta Stock Exchange, the process that would ordinarily allow trading has

not been completed. Therefore, for the year under review, the process with which units would actually have been subscribed for or redeemed remain unchanged and therefore the

listing of such units would not render the entity to fall within the scope of IFRS 8.

Amounts due from and due to brokers (margin accounts) are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised

cost using the effective interest method. 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a

transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is

recognized as a separate asset or liability. 

Derecognition

The redeemable shares are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost and are measured at the redemption amount. In accordance with the Company’s offering

memorandum, the redemption amounts of the individual redeemable shares are calculated using the mid-market prices of the respective sub-fund’s underlying

investments/securities short positions. In accordance with IFRS 13, fair value measurements are based on quoted market mid-prices on each valuation day for both financial assets

and financial liabilities where this price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the market mid-price is not within the bid-ask spread, the Board of Directors

determines the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised), and

consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Interest is recorded on an accruals basis. Dividends are recorded on an ex-dividend date basis.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Company has a current legal right to offset

the amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. 

- Interest rate benchmark reform Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS9, IAS39, IFRS7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) - effective on 1 January 2021 and endorsed by the EU

All expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.  

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, e.g. for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions, such as gains and

losses from financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

The disclosure of segment information is required by those entities whose debt or equity instruments are traded in a public market or that file, or are in the process of filing, their

financial statements with a securities commission or other regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing any class of instruments in a public market.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations as endorsed by the European Union effective in the current period

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash with banks and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant changes in value.  Cash and deposits with banks and brokers are stated at their principal amount.

The adoption of these standards did not have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations were endorsed by the EU and are effective for the current reporting period:

- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)
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4 Fair value measurements

30 June 2022

Global Macro Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds -                             26,404,389                   -                                     26,404,389                   

Equities 4,961,928               -                                   -                                     4,961,928                     

Future options 62,438                    -                                   -                                     62,438                          

Futures 113,373                  -                                   -                                     113,373                        

Forwards and Spot -                             335,581                        -                                     335,581                        

Total 5,137,739               26,739,970                   -                                     31,877,709                   

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Futures (375,137)                 -                                   -                                     (375,137)                       

Forwards and Spot -                             (361,078)                       -                                     (361,078)                       

Total (375,137)                 (361,078)                       -                                     (736,215)                       

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities 1,001,933               83,135                          -                                     1,085,068                     

Options 120,624                  -                                   -                                     120,624                        

Total 1,122,557               83,135                          -                                     1,205,692                     

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities (6,597,468)              -                                   -                                     (6,597,468)                    

Options (37,351)                   -                                   -                                     (37,351)                         

Forwards and Spot -                             (91,549)                         -                                     (91,549)                         

Total (6,634,819)              (91,549)                         -                                     (6,726,368)                    

Long-Term Equity Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds -                             1,188,667                     -                                     1,188,667                     

Equities 125,440,800           -                                   -                                     125,440,800                 

Futures 148,262                  -                                   -                                     148,262                        

Options 227,776                  -                                   -                                     227,776                        

Swaps -                             58,847                          -                                     58,847                          

Future options 17,474                    -                                   -                                     17,474                          

Forwards and Spot -                             2,725,397                     -                                     2,725,397                     

Total 125,834,312           3,972,911                     -                                     129,807,223                 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities (587,419)                 -                                   -                                     (587,419)                       

Futures (415,490)                 -                                   -                                     (415,490)                       

Options (88,421)                   -                                   -                                     (88,421)                         

Swaps -                             (143,503)                       -                                     (143,503)                       

Future options (49,447)                   -                                   -                                     (49,447)                         

Forwards and Spot -                             (10,640,256)                  -                                     (10,640,256)                  

Total (1,140,777)              (10,783,759)                  -                                     (11,924,536)                  

Level 1  - quoted market prices (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument; 

Level 3 - valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable

data, including the Company’s own assumptions, and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are

valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustment or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to

which the fair value is observable:

Notes to Financial Statements

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on quoted market mid-prices at the close of trading on the period end date. A financial instrument

is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,

and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. 

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and

makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each period-end date. Valuation techniques used for non-standardised financial instruments, such as options

and total return swaps, include the use of comparable recent arm’s length transactions, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants

making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. 

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:

quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation

techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data;

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors

relevant to the positions the Company holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risk, liquidity risk and counterparty

risk.
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4 Fair value measurements (continued)

30 June 2021

Global Macro Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds -                             28,850,821                   -                                     28,850,821                   

Equities 1,501,535               -                                   -                                     1,501,535                     

Futures 614,570                  -                                   -                                     614,570                        

Options 26,535                    -                                   -                                     26,535                          

Forwards and Spot -                             347,804                        -                                     347,804                        

Total 2,142,640               29,198,625                   -                                     31,341,265                   

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities (34,392)                   -                                   -                                     (34,392)                         

Futures (508,933)                 -                                   -                                     (508,933)                       

Options (57,135)                   -                                   -                                     (57,135)                         

Forwards and Spot -                             (264,238)                       -                                     (264,238)                       

Total (600,460)                 (264,238)                       -                                     (864,698)                       

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities 2,336,107               184,088                        -                                     2,520,195                     

Options 97,369                    -                                   -                                     97,369                          

Forwards and Spot -                             5,990                            -                                     5,990                            

Total 2,433,476               190,078                        -                                     2,623,554                     

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities (1,586,025)              (429,906)                       -                                     (2,015,931)                    

Options (24,887)                   -                                   -                                     (24,887)                         

Forwards and Spot -                             (23,349)                         -                                     (23,349)                         

Total (1,610,912)              (453,255)                       -                                     (2,064,167)                    

Long-Term Equity Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds -                             871,953                        -                                     871,953                        

Equities 97,103,556             5,418,777                     -                                     102,522,333                 

Futures 61,203                    -                                -                                     61,203                          

Options 32,257                    -                                -                                     32,257                          

Forwards and Spot -                             281,538                        -                                     281,538                        

Total 97,197,016             6,572,268                     -                                     103,769,284                 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities (158,562)                 -                                   -                                     (158,562)                       

Futures (94,709)                   -                                   -                                     (94,709)                         

Options (29,695)                   -                                   -                                     (29,695)                         

Forwards and Spot -                             (931,762)                       -                                     (931,762)                       

Total (282,966)                 (931,762)                       -                                     (1,214,728)                    

I.

II.

5 Financial risk management

Market risk

The Company's strategy for the management of market risk is driven by the Fund's investment objective. For description of this, refer to Section 1 Reporting Entity.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - e.g. interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit spreads - will affect the Fund's income or the fair value of

its holdings of financial instruments.

The principal tool used to measure the market risk exposure of the Company is a VaR analysis prepared by MSCI RiskMetrics. The VaR of the Company's portfolio is the estimated

loss that may arise on the portfolio over a specified period of time (holding period) from an adverse market movement within specified probability. VaR model used is based on the

95% confidence level and assumes 10-days holding period. The overall structure of VaR limits is subject to the review and approval of the Investment Committee and Board of

Directors. VaR is measured monthly. Quarterly reports of use of VaR limits are submitted to the Investment Committee and regular summaries are submitted to the Board of

Directors. 

The Company is exposed to various risks arising from the financial instruments it holds. The risk management policies employed by the Company to manage these risks are

discussed below.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares. The Company routinely redeems and issues the redeemable shares at the amount equal to the proportionate share

of net assets of the sub-fund at the time of redemption, calculated on a basis consistent with that used in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net

assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares approximates fair value. The shares are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL include:

The Company's market risk is managed on a daily basis by the respective portfolio manager in accordance with the policies and procedures in place. This includes the

estabslishment of a Risk Management Policy (RMP) and of Investment Process Procedures. Then the respective portfolio manager performs the daily pre-trade-checks against the

limits set in the RMP which include also the limits set in the Offering Supplement. In the case of any breach an escalation procedure described in RMP is activated. The Company's

market positions are monitored monthly by the Risk manager who reports to Board of directors.

The Company is a self-managed collective investment scheme and any reference to the Investment Manager refers to the founder shareholders who make decisions in line with the

policies set out in the Offering Memorandum and Supplements. 

Cash and cash equivalents, balances due from/to brokers and receivables/payables under sale and repurchase agreements and trade and other receivables. These are

short-term financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amounts approximate fair value, because of their short-term nature and the high credit quality of

counterparties; and

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Manager. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.  
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

2022 2021

                          909,686                         418,807 

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)                        1,549,323                         148,669 

                       8,809,630                      2,914,334 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

€ % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets

Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long Long-Term

Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

(48)                      0.00% (37)                          0.00% 1,446,098                      1.13%

1,834,790           4.78% (147)                        0.00% 10,344,061                    8.10%

(5,202)                 (0.01%) (1)                            0.00% 1,815,812                      1.42%

21,383                0.06% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

4,474,828           11.65% 84,692                    0.73% 2,493                             0.00%

-                          0.00% 83,133                    0.72% 1,802,751                      1.41%

(125)                    0.00% -                             0.00% 324,055                         0.25%

(337)                    0.00% -                             0.00% 739,622                         0.58%

(48)                      0.00% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

-                          0.00% 5,688                      0.05% -                                     0.00%

-                          0.00% 190,837                  1.65% 2,542,053                      1.99%

2,334                  0.01% (96)                          0.00% 2,250,019                      1.76%

13,209,646          34.38% 4,121,402               35.69% 81,409,626                    63.78%

19,537,221          50.87% 4,485,471               38.84% 102,676,590                   80.42%

€ % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets € % of Net Assets

Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long Long-Term

Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

-                          0.00% (36) (0.00%) 367,283                         0.35%

91,166                0.26% (147) (0.00%) 1,293,935                      1.23%

3,084,969           8.82% -                             0.00% 6,165,525                      5.86%

19,484                0.06% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

3,636,486           10.40% 3,798,501               33.03% 11,649,674                    11.08%

-                          0.00% 184,088                  1.60% 4,689,171                      4.46%

1,628,578           4.66% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

5,305,164           15.17% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

8,554                  0.02% -                             0.00% 250,019                         0.24%

(336)                    (0.00%) -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

39,797                0.11% -                             0.00% -                                     0.00%

10,440,078          29.86% -                             0.00% 24,426                           0.02%

2,093,371           5.99% -                             0.00% 3,038,519                      2.89%

(11,345,343)        (32.45%) (88) (0.00%) 1,980,096                      1.88%

2,789,357           7.98% 303,718                  2.64% (1,884,686)                     (1.79%)

17,791,326          50.87% 4,286,038               37.27% 27,573,965                    26.22%

Interest rate risk

Exposure to fixed and variable interest rates

The Company uses derivatives to manage its exposure to foreign currency. The instruments include foreign currency forward contracts, futures and options. The Company does not

apply hedge accounting.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The below table provides the overall VaR calculations for each sub-fund and period:

The Funds have direct exposure to fixed interest rates through investments in fixed income instruments. The Company's exposure to variable interest rates is not considered to be

material. Exposures to interest rate risks are monitored via risk management procedures involving stress testing and sensitivities.

The Company is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of its financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, changes in

market risk premia and changes in general macro-economic conditions. The investment manager carefully monitors the interest rate risk arising from the interest-bearing financial

instruments held by all the sub-funds.  Based on the investment manager’s view on future interest rates, bonds of various durations are held in order to optimize portfolio returns.

The Investment Manager manages the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk on a daily basis in accordance with the Company’s investment objectives and policies. The

Company’s overall exposure to interest rate risk is monitored on a quarterly basis by the board of directors.

Sensitivity of interest rate risk is included within the overall VaR measure presented earlier.

Long-Term Equity

The Company holds assets denominated in currencies other than Euro, the functional currency. It is, therefore, exposed to currency risk as the value of the assets denominated in

other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 

The table below summarizes the Company's exposure to currency risk as at 30 June 2022:

30 June 2021

Sensitivity of currency risk is included within the overall VaR measure presented earlier.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

The table below summarizes the Company's exposure to currency risk as at 30 June 2021:

Global Macro

Currency risk

30 June 2022
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Maturities of debt securities

Short Equity Short Equity

(formerly (formerly 

known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term

Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity

€ (% of total) € (% of total) € (% of total)

0-2 years 8,959,351           33.93% -                             -                                   879,718                         74.01%

2-5 years 11,506,056          43.58% -                             -                                   308,949                         25.99%

5+ years 5,938,982           22.49% -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

26,404,389          100.00% -                             -                                   1,188,667                      100.00%

Short Equity Short Equity

(formerly (formerly 

known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term

Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity

€ (% of total) € (% of total) € (% of total)

0-2 years 5,465,649           18.94% -                             -                                   517,182                         59.31%

2-5 years 16,215,218          56.20% -                             -                                   354,771                         40.69%

5+ years 7,169,954           24.85% -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

28,850,821          100.00% -                             -                                   871,953                         100.00%

The table below analyzes Global Macro’s and Long-Term Equity's portfolio of debt instruments by S&P rating agency category.

Global Macro Fund

2022 2022 2021 2021

€ €

B 106,239                  0.40% 163,155                         0.57%

B- 1,873,727               7.10% 358,782                         1.24%

B+ 1,056,911               4.00% 2,568,742                      8.90%

BB 395,341                  1.50% -                                     0.00%

BB- -                             0.00% 640,333                         2.22%

BBB -                             0.00% 115,972                         0.40%

CC 135,038                  0.51% -                                     0.00%

CCC 811,252                  3.07% -                                     0.00%

CCC+ 1,812,272               6.86% 1,167,237                      4.05%

20,213,609             76.55% 23,836,601                    82.62%

26,404,389             100.00% 28,850,821                    100.00%

Concentration of credit risk

Global Macro Fund

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds

Consumer, Cyclical 803,168                  2.09% 7,960,794                      22.77%

Consumer, Non-cyclical 289,791                  0.75% -                                     0.00%

Commodities 420,981                  1.10% -                                     0.00%

Energy 6,738,076               17.54% 2,948,449                      8.43%

Financial 15,101,624             39.31% 13,486,074                    38.57%

Government 405,486                  1.06% 690,686                         1.98%

Industrial 2,645,263               6.89% 3,764,818                      10.77%

26,404,389             68.74% 28,850,820                    82.51%

As at 30 June 2022

As at 30 June 2021

Credit risk

At 30 June 2022, all of the Company’s cash balances and investments are held with the Company’s Custodians/Brokers. The Company's custodians/brokers ratings vary from A-

to BBB- (2021: BBB+ to BBB), with four custodians/brokers being not rated.  The Portfolio Managers do not anticipate any material losses as a result of this concentration.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

Credit rating

% of debt instruments % of debt instruments

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the Company's debt securities exposures were concentrated in the following industries:

The investment manager reviews the credit concentration of debt securities held based on counterparties and industries.

All investments made by the investment manager in fixed income instruments take into account the credit risk of such instruments and more specifically whether the yield on the

security adequately compensates the investor for the risk of the counterparty defaulting. 

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Long Term Equity and Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) portfolio of debt instruments is all unrated.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Balances due from brokers represent margin accounts, cash collateral for borrowed securities and sale transactions awaiting settlements. Credit risk relating to unsettled

transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the credit quality of the brokers.

Currency risk (continued)

Unrated

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Long-Term Equity

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Bonds

Industrial 308,949                  0.24% 356,352                         0.34%

Financial 879,718                  0.69% 515,601                         0.49%

1,188,667               0.93% 871,953                         0.83%

Amounts arising from ECL

Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
736,215                  -                                   -                                     736,215                        

481,924                  -                                   -                                     481,924                        

147,832                  -                                   -                                     147,832                        

Accrued expenses and other liabilities -                             68,663                          -                                     68,663                          

-                             -                                   38,417,006                    38,417,006                   

1,365,971               68,663                          38,417,006                    39,851,640                   

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
6,726,368               -                                   -                                     6,726,368                     

895,110                  -                                   -                                     895,110                        

46,495                    -                                   -                                     46,495                          

Accrued expenses and other liabilities -                             30,568                          -                                     30,568                          

-                             -                                   11,548,965                    11,548,965                   

7,667,973               30,568                          11,548,965                    19,247,506                   

As at 30 June 2022, Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) had no pending redemptions payments. There were no redemptions ordered in the 3 months after the reporting period.

Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
11,924,536             -                                   -                                     11,924,536                   

5,843,051               -                                   -                                     5,843,051                     

314,962                  -                                   -                                     314,962                        

Accrued expenses and other liabilities -                             103,144                        -                                     103,144                        

-                             -                                   127,641,151                   127,641,151                 

18,082,549             103,144                        127,641,151                   145,826,844                 

30 June 202130 June 2022

Management and performance fees payable

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

Due to broker

As at 30 June 2022, Global Macro had no pending redemptions payments. There were no redemptions ordered in the 3 months after the reporting period.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents, balances due from brokers and loans and other receivables has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the

short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that these exposures have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties or based on the

financial position of the respective counterparty.

Due to broker

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial

asset. At 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Company’s liabilities include net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders and other financial liabilities.

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

12-month and lifetime probabilities of default are based on historical data supplied by S&P for each credit rating. Loss given default parameters generally reflect an assumed

recovery rate of 0%. However, if the asset were credit-impaired, then the estimate of loss would be based on a specific assessment of expected cash shortfalls and on the original

effective interest rate.

Due to broker

Global Macro

As at 30 June 2022

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

Management and performance fees payable

Long-Term Equity

Credit risk (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Management and performance fees payable

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The Fund also restricts its exposure to credit losses on the trading derivative instruments it holds by entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties (approved

brokers) with whom it undertakes a significant volume of transactions. Master netting arrangements do not result in an offset of statement of financial position assets and liabilities,

as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if

an event of default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis. The Fund’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative instruments subject

to a master netting arrangement can change substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each transaction subject to the arrangement. Refer to ‘Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities’ section in note 5 for further analysis of the Fund’s master netting arrangements.

There were no significant concentrations in the debt securities of credit risk to any individual issuer or group of issuers at 30 June 2022 or 30 June 2021. No individual issuer

exceeded 13.15% (2021: 14.73%) of the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable shares either at 30 June 2022 or at 30 June 2021.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

All liabilities of the SICAV are paid in 1-3 months.

The Company is exposed to monthly cash redemptions of the Company’s shares. The Company’s listed securities are considered readily realizable, as the majority of the securities

are listed on a stock exchange. The Company may periodically invest in derivative contracts traded over the counter, which are not traded in an organized market and may be

illiquid. At 30 June 2022 and 2021, the Company held no investments that it considered illiquid. The following table details the Company’s liquidity analysis for its financial liabilities.

The table has been drawn up based on the carrying amount of the financial liabilities that settle on a net basis and the carrying amount of those financial liabilities that require gross

settlement. 

The Company monitors changes in credit risk on these exposures by tracking published external credit ratings of the counterparties. To determine whether published ratings remain

up to date and to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not been reflected in the published ratings, the Company

supplements this by reviewing changes in bond yields, where available, credit default swap (CDS) prices together with available press and regulatory information about

counterparties.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made

once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its

obligation.
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
864,698                  -                                   -                                     864,698                        

4,102,300               -                                   -                                     4,102,300                     

284,502                  -                                   -                                     284,502                        

Accrued expenses and other liabilities -                             59,101                          -                                     59,101                          

-                             -                                   34,965,795                    34,965,795                   

5,251,500               59,101                          34,965,795                    40,276,396                   

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
2,064,167               -                                   -                                     2,064,167                     

5,382                      -                                   -                                     5,382                            

42,701                    -                                   -                                     42,701                          

-                             21,369                          -                                     21,369                          

-                             -                                   11,443,235                    11,443,235                   

2,112,250               21,369                          11,443,235                    13,576,854                   

Less than 1 month 1-3 months More than 3 months Total

€ € € €
1,214,728               -                                   -                                     1,214,728                     

4,350,909               -                                   -                                     4,350,909                     

211,674                  -                                   -                                     211,674                        

-                             132,808                        -                                     132,808                        

104,850,386           -                                   -                                     104,850,386                 

110,627,697           132,808                        -                                     110,760,505                 

Short Equity Short Equity

(formerly (formerly 

known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term

Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity

€ (% of total investments) €
(% of total 

investments)
€

(% of total 

investments)

Developed markets 13,090,057          42.00% (3,516,323)              64.77% 123,135,063                   97.88%

Emerging markets 18,076,934          58.00% (1,912,805)              35.23% 2,662,483                      2.12%

Total 31,166,991          100.00% (5,429,128)              100.00% 125,797,546                   100.00%

Short Equity Short Equity

(formerly (formerly 

known as Long known as Long Long-Term Long-Term

Global Macro Global Macro Short Equity) Short Equity) Equity Equity

€
(% of total investments)

€
(% of total 

investments) €
(% of total 

investments)

Developed markets 8,121,532           26.72% (1,184,326) (205.35%) 102,686,336                   99.50%

Emerging markets 22,271,469          73.28% 1,761,071               305.35% 518,444                         0.50%

Total 30,393,001          100.00% 1,761,071               100.00% 103,204,780                   100.00%

Apart from mitigation of the credit risk of derivatives, reverse sale and repurchase agreements, the Company does not use any collateral or other credit enhancements.

OTC derivatives expose the Company to the risk that the counterparties to the derivative financial instruments might default on their obligations to the Company. 

As at 30 June 2021

The pricing of certain derivative instruments, including contracts for differences, futures and options, carry a degree of volatility. In addition, the Company is subject to the risk of

failure of any of the exchanges on which it trades or of their clearing houses and in certain cases the counterparties with whom the trades are carried out. The Company may

purchase options on a variety of securities exchanges and over-the-counter markets to hedge exposure of underlying fixed income or equity holdings. Trading in futures and options

is a highly specialized activity and although it may increase the total return of the segregated portfolios, it may also decrease the total return.

The Company mitigates the credit risk of derivatives and reverse sale and repurchase agreements by entering into master netting agreements and holding collateral in the form of

cash and marketable securities.

Long-Term Equity

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Company enters in two types of derivative transactions: exchange traded derivatives and over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives. Credit risk arising from exchange traded

derivatives is mitigated by margin requirements.

Due to broker

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Management and performance fees payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

The table below presents the split of the investment portfolio, excluding forwards and spots for each sub-fund as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021:

Emerging market risks

Investments in emerging markets can be subject to risks not normally associated with more developed markets. These risks mainly relate to the instability of the economies of

emerging markets, political uncertainties and, in some cases, the lack of liquidity in the market.

Derivative risk

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Global Macro

Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

As at 30 June 2021

Derivative financial instruments

Due to broker

As at 30 June 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

As at 30 June 2022

Collateral and other credit enhancements and their financial effect

The Company may use derivative financial instruments in the management of its foreign currency exposure. The Company may purchase foreign exchange forward and currency

futures contracts to hedge assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. 

Management and performance fees payable

Management and performance fees payable

Derivative financial instruments such as futures and options are transacted with counterparties Interactive Brokers, EDF, Cowen and TradeStation whereas derivative financial

instruments such as foreign currency forwards are transacted with counterparties J&T Banka and EDF. One counterparty is rated BBB+ based on rating agency Standard & Poor’s

rating. The other counterparties are not rated, however they are all deemed reputable credit institutions.

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholers

Due to broker
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 

The Company receives and gives collateral in the form of cash and marketable securities in respect of the following transactions:

-

-

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

30 June 2022

Gross amount of Net amounts

recognised financial of financial assets Financial

Gross amount liabilities offset in the presented in the instruments Cash

of recognised statement of statement of (including non-cash collateral 

financial assets financial position financial position collateral) received Net amount

€ € € € € €

Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures -                          -                                      -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

Derivatives - futures options -                          -                                      -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

Forwards and spots 335,581              -                                      335,581                  (335,581)                       -                                     -                                   

Total 335,581              -                                      335,581                  (335,581)                       -                                     -                                   

Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures -                          -                                      -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

Derivatives - futures options -                          -                                      -                             -                                   -                                     -                                   

Forwards and spots 2,725,397           -                                      2,725,397               (2,725,397)                    -                                     -                                   

Total 2,725,397           -                                      2,725,397               (2,725,397)                    -                                     -                                   

Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

30 June 2022

Gross amount of Net amounts of

recognised financial financial liabilities Financial

Gross amount assets offset in the presented in the instruments Cash

of recognised statement of statement of (including non-cash collateral 

financial liabilities financial position financial position collateral) posted Net amount

€ € € € € €

Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (375,137)             -                                      (375,137)                 -                                   375,137                         -                                   

Forwards and spots (361,078)             -                                      (361,078)                 335,581                        25,497                           -                                   

Total (736,215)             -                                      (736,215)                 335,581                        400,634                         -                                   

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Type of financial liabilities

Forwards and spots (91,549)               -                                      (91,549)                   -                                   91,549                           -                                   

Total (91,549)               -                                      (91,549)                   -                                   91,549                           -                                   

Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (415,490)             -                                      (415,490)                 -                                   415,490                         -                                   

Derivatives - futures options (49,447)               -                                      (49,447)                   -                                   49,447                           -                                   

Forwards and spots (10,640,256)        -                                      (10,640,256)            2,725,397                     7,914,859                      -                                   

Total (11,105,193)        -                                      (11,105,193)            2,725,397                     8,379,796                      -                                   

securities borrowing.

Similar agreements include derivative clearing agreements, global master repurchase agreements and global master securities lending agreements. Similar financial instruments

include derivatives, sale and repurchase agreements, reverse sale and repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing agreements. 

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

None of the financial assets and financial liabilities are offset in the statement of financial position. The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial

liabilities that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments. 

Such collateral is subject to the standard industry terms of ISDA’s Credit Support Annex. This means that securities received/given as collateral can be pledged or sold during the

term of the transaction but have to be returned on maturity of the transaction. The terms also give each counterparty the right to terminate the related transactions on the

counterparty’s failure to post collateral. 

The ISDA and similar master netting arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because they create a right of set-off of

recognized amounts that is enforceable only following an event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparties. In addition, the Company and its

counterparties do not intend to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Related amounts not offset in the statement of 

financial position

Global Macro

Long-Term Equity

derivatives; and

Long-Term Equity

Related amounts not offset in the statement of 

financial position

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Global Macro

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial assets subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

30 June 2021

Gross amount of Net amounts

recognised financial of financial assets Financial

Gross amount liabilities offset in the presented in the instruments Cash

of recognised statement of statement of (including non-cash collateral 

financial assets financial position financial position collateral) received Net amount

€ € € € € €

Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures 614,570              -                                      614,570                  (508,933)                       (105,637)                        -

Forwards and spots 347,804              -                                      347,804                  (264,238)                       -                                     83,566                          

Total 962,374              -                                      962,374                  (773,171)                       (105,637)                        83,566                          

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Type of financial assets

Forwards and spots 5,990                  -                                      5,990                      (5,990)                           -                                     -                                   

Total 5,990                  -                                      5,990                      (5,990)                           -                                     -                                   

Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures 61,203                -                                      61,203                    (61,203)                         -                                     -                                   

Forwards and spots 281,538              -                                      281,538                  (281,538)                       -                                     -                                   

Total 342,741              -                                      342,741                  (342,741)                       -                                     -                                   

Financial liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

30 June 2021

Gross amount of Net amounts of

recognised financial financial liabilities Financial

Gross amount assets offset in the presented in the instruments Cash

of recognised statement of statement of (including non-cash collateral 

financial liabilities financial position financial position collateral) posted Net amount

€ € € € € €

Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (508,933)             -                                      (508,933)                 508,933                        -                                     -                                   

Forwards and spots (264,238)             -                                      (264,238)                 264,238                        -                                     -                                   

Total (773,171)             -                                      (773,171)                 773,171                        -                                     -                                   

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Type of financial liabilities

Forwards and spots (23,349)               -                                      (23,349)                   5,990                            -                                     (17,358)                         

Total (23,349)               -                                      (23,349)                   5,990                            -                                     (17,358)                         

Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (94,709)               -                                      (94,709)                   61,203                          33,506                           -                                   

Forwards and spots (931,762)             -                                      (931,762)                 281,538                        -                                     (650,224)                       

Total (1,026,471)          -                                      (1,026,471)              342,741                        33,506                           (650,225)                       

- derivative assets and liabilities – fair value.

Global Macro

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Related amounts not offset in the statement of 

financial position

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Long-Term Equity

Related amounts not offset in the statement of 

financial position

Global Macro

Long-Term Equity

The gross amounts of recognized financial assets and financial liabilities and their net amounts presented in the statement of financial position disclosed in the above tables have

been measured in the statement of financial position on the following basis: 
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Reconciliation to the net amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities presented in the statement of financial position

30 June 2022

Line item in Carrying amount Financial assets/

statement of in statement of (liabilities) not in scope

Amount financial position financial position of offsetting disclosures Note

Global Macro € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots 335,581                           Financial assets 31,877,709                   31,542,128                    4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - forwards and spots -                                      Financial assets 1,205,692                     1,205,692                      4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Long-Term Equity € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots 2,725,397                        Financial assets 129,807,223                 127,081,826                   4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Global Macro € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots (736,215)                          Financial liabilities (736,215)                       -                                     4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - forwards and spots (91,549)                            Financial liabilities (6,726,368)                    (6,634,819)                     4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Long-Term Equity € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots (11,105,193)                     Financial liabilities (11,924,536)                  (819,343)                        4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Reconciliation to the net amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities presented in the statement of financial position (continued)

30 June 2021

Line item in Carrying amount Financial assets/

statement of in statement of (liabilities) not in scope

Amount financial position financial position of offsetting disclosures Note

Global Macro € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots 962,374                           Financial assets 31,341,265                   30,378,891                    4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots 5,990                               Financial assets 2,623,554                     2,617,564                      4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Long-Term Equity € € €
Type of financial assets

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots 342,741                           Financial assets 103,769,284                 103,426,543                   4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Global Macro € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots (773,171)                          Financial liabilities (864,698)                       (91,527)                          4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures (23,349)                            Financial liabilities (2,064,167)                    (2,040,818)                     4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

Long-Term Equity € € €
Type of financial liabilities

Derivatives - futures, forwards and spots (1,026,471)                       Financial liabilities (1,214,728)                    (188,257)                        4                                   

at fair value

through profit or loss

The tables below reconcile the ‘Net amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities presented in the statement of financial position’, as set out above, to the line items presented

in the statement of financial position. 

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
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5 Financial risk management (continued)

The Investment Manager monitors capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable shareholders. 

6a Cash and cash equivalents
Short Equity

(formerly 

Founder known as Long Long-Term

As at 31 December 2022 The Company shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

€ € € € €

Cash and cash equivalents 1,869,250                     583,942                  3,974                         326,174                      955,160                     

1,869,250                        583,942                  3,974                            326,174                         955,160                        

Short Equity

(formerly 

Founder known as Long Long-Term

As at 31 December 2021 The Company shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

€ € € € €

Cash and cash equivalents 11,773,650                   185,967                  730,250                     7,936,260                    2,921,173                  

11,773,650                      185,967                  730,250                        7,936,260                      2,921,173                     

6b Amounts due from/to brokers
Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long

30 June 2022 The Company Global Macro Short Equity) Long-Term Equity

€ € € €
Amounts due from brokers

Sales transactions awaiting settlement 1,662,481               -                                   527,729                         1,134,752                     

Margin accounts 40,336,597             7,959,302                     17,512,073                    14,865,222                   

41,999,078             7,959,302                     18,039,802                    15,999,974                   

Amounts due to brokers

499,476                  -                                   279                                499,197                        

Margin accounts 6,720,609               481,924                        894,831                         5,343,854                     

7,220,085               481,924                        895,110                         5,843,051                     

Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long

30 June 2021 The Company Global Macro Short Equity) Long-Term Equity

€ € € €
Balances due from brokers

Sales transactions awaiting settlement 2,345,028               499,750                        169,185                         1,676,093                     

Margin accounts 15,771,184             8,423,971                     2,809,239                      4,537,974                     

18,116,212             8,923,721                     2,978,424                      6,214,067                     

Balances due to brokers

2,715,258               -                                   5,111                             2,710,147                     

Margin accounts 5,743,333               4,102,300                     271                                1,640,763                     

8,458,591               4,102,300                     5,382                             4,350,909                     

7 Trade and other receivables and other assets

2022 2021

€ €
Global Macro 62,439                           57,275                          

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 30,053                           20,857                          

Long-Term Equity 106,709                         132,643                        

199,201                         210,775                        

8 Net income/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables attributable to founder shareholders amounting to €708,699 (2021: €694,811) are made up of amounts receivable from founder and preferred

shareholders amounting to €117 (2021: €126), and amounts receivable from sub-funds amounting to €708,582 (2021: €694,685 ). 

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The net income/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes realized and unrealized gains or losses on the movement in the fair value of these

assets/liabilities, interest income and expense, dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses arising on retranslation of financial assets and liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss.

The amounts receivable from the Company's sub-funds are unsecured, interest free and are repayable within one month from the date of the statement of financial position. These

amounts relate to outstanding management and performance fees payable by the sub-funds amounting to €509,381 (2021: €483,910) and other recharges made to the sub-funds

as follows:

Purchase transactions awaiting settlement

Capital risk management

Positive margin accounts represents cash deposits with brokers, transferred as collateral against open derivative contracts. The Company uses brokers to transact derivative

transactions, including those with central counterparties. The amounts due to brokers are collateralised by assets held at such brokers.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

In accordance with the Company policy of trade-date accounting for regular-way sale and purchase transactions, sales/purchase transactions awaiting settlement represent

amounts receivable/payable for securities sold/purchased but not yet settled as at the reporting date.

Purchase transactions awaiting settlement

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The capital of the Company’s sub-funds is represented by the net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders. The amount of net assets attributable to redeemable

participating shareholders can change significantly on a monthly basis as the sub-funds are subject to monthly subscriptions and redemptions at the request of shareholders. The

Investment Manager’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the respective sub-fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders

and to support the development of the investment activities of the sub-funds.

Notes to Financial Statements
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9 Fees and expenses

Management fee Management fee Management fee

rate p.a. payable

% € €

30 June 2022

Global Macro 1.50 548,174                         147,832                        

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 1.50 160,526                         37,571                          

Long-Term Equity* 0.75 1,169,595                      314,962                        

1,878,295                      500,365                        

30 June 2021

Global Macro 1.50 471,268                         127,446                        

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 1.50 172,694                         42,701                          

Long-Term Equity* 0.75 614,908                         211,674                        

1,258,870                      381,821                        

Performance fee Performance fee Performance fee

rate p.a. payable

% € €

30 June 2022

Global Macro 20 947,620                         -                                   

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 20 10,860                           8,924                            

Long-Term Equity -                                   -                                     -                                   

958,480                         8,924                            

30 June 2021

Global Macro 20 311,665                         157,056                        

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 20 -                                     -                                   

Long-Term Equity -                                   -                                     -                                   

311,665                         157,056                        

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €
Founder shareholders 14,300                    12,000                          15,641                           13,147                          

Global Macro 25,883                    25,927                          -                                     6,390                            

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 12,456                    12,271                          3,137                             3,091                            

Long-Term Equity 98,420                    52,710                          -                                     18,135                          

151,059                  102,908                        18,778                           40,763                          

(i) Auditors' remuneration

2022 2021

€ €
Audit Fees 37,000                           43,754                          

Tax Advisory 4,691                             4,691                            

41,691                           48,445                          

Auditors' remuneration

Administration fees - payable

Mainstream Fund Services (Malta) Limited is the administrator for the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022. For the year ending 30 June 2022, the administrator was entitled

to the following fees:

The Founder shareholders and PM Squared Limited (see note 13) charge each Sub-Fund (except for Long-Term Equity) a fee based on the performance of the Sub-Fund which is

calculated on a quarterly basis. 

The performance fee represents a percentage of the net profits in respect of each Series of Shares, namely the increase in the NAV per Series of Shares outstanding in respect of

each performance period. Performance Fee is subject to a high watermark and, in the case of Global Macro and Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity), to a

cumulative benchmark return of 1 year EURIBOR+400bps per annum for Global Macro and 20% per annum for Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Share Class A

EUR, Class C USD and Class E CZK and 20% per annum for Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) Share Class B EUR, Class D USD, Class F CZK and Class BP

EUR.

Professional fees include the following fees payable (inclusive of Value Added Tax) to the Company's auditors and to the Company's directors for the year ended 30 June 2022:

Long-Term Equity  

Global Macro

a)       7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €25,500 till 31 July 2021 and  €25,882 from 1 August 2021 indexed at 1.5% (2021: €25,500) per annum  

Administration fees

a)        7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €12,363 till 31 December 2021 and  €12,548 from 1 January 2022 indexed at 1.5%  (2021: €12,363) per annum 

Professional fees

a)        subject to a minimum charge of €7,000 per annum.

The following administration fees were incurred during the year and remained outstanding at year-end. 

*The management fee rate of 0.75% p.a. applies for Class A EUR Shares. 

For Class B EUR Shares, a rate of 1.5% p.a. applies. 

For Class C CZK, Class D EUR Shares, Class E USD Shares and Class S CHF, a fee of 1% p.a. applies.

For Class I EUR Shares, a rate of 0.5% applies.

Management Fee 

Founder shareholders

Administration fees

Performance Fee 

The Founder shareholders receive a fee equivalent to a percentage per annum, pro-rated on a monthly basis, of the Net Asset Value (NAV) of each Sub-Fund at the end of each

month except of the Global Macro sub-fund which NAV is calclated on a quarterly basis. Such fee is payable at the end of the month to which the computation refers. 

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

a)        7.5bps of the NAV subject to a minimum charge of €12,363 till 31 December 2021 and  €12,548 from 1 January 2022 indexed at 1.5%  (2021: €12,363) per annum 

During the year, a total fee amounting to €151,059 (2021: €102,908) was charged by the Administrator to the Founder Shareholders, out of which the amount of €136,759 (2021:

€90,908) was recharged to the sub-funds. In addition, the administrator charges the Founder Shareholders, which are then recharged to the sub-funds, for services which are not

specific to any given sub-fund, such as Middle Office, Tax and Central Bank reporting and Audit and Financial Statements assistance.
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9 Fees and expenses (continued)

(ii) Directors' fees

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

Global Macro 4,832                      7,616                            1,193                             1,475                            

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 1,516                      2,644                            269                                494                               

Long-Term Equity 16,652                    13,436                          4,287                             3,782                            

23,000                    23,696                          5,749                             5,751                            

Directors are also entitled to receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred in the performance of their duties as Directors of the Company.

Administration fees, audit fees and directors’ fees are paid by the Founder shareholders on behalf of the sub-funds and subsequently recharged to the sub-funds.

Short Equity

(formerly 

Founder known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

2022 2022 2022 2022

€ € € €

Custodian fees -                             44,806                          11,123                           112,097                        

Operating fees 932,212                  52,758                          20,272                           177,511                        

Investment research fees 26,274                    -                                   -                                     164,000                        

Withholding Tax -                             202,891                        949                                371,936                        

958,486                  300,455                        32,344                           825,544                        

Founder Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long Long-Term

shareholders Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

2021 2021 2021 2021

€ € € €

Custodian fees -                             50,512                          11,830                           59,164                          

Operating fees 799,237                  22,505                          63,592                           230,150                        

Other expenses -                             3,222                            -                                     -                                   

Investment research fees 30,373                    15,771                          -                                     244,000                        

Withholding tax -                             287,892                        26,647                           181,086                        

829,610                  379,902                        102,069                         714,400                        

10 Capital and reserves

10.1 Share Capital

Directors' fees - payable

The Preferred Return is the entitlement of the Preferred Shareholders to the payment of a maximum amount computed by reference to the Base Fee (being the management fee)

and the Performance Fee payable by the respective sub-fund to which the Preferred Shares relate.

The Associate Shares are only transferrable with the prior approval of the Board.

c) 1,500 (2021: 1,000) Associate Shares of € 1 each.

For the year ended 30 June 2022

The authorized share capital of the Company is five hundred million (500,000,000) shares, of € 1 each which may be issued as Shares of any class representing any sub-fund. 

Directors' fees

The Founder Shares are the only voting shares and carry a right to participate pari passu in the assets of the Company on a winding up following settlement of any and all amounts

due to the Investor Shares. Any amounts declared in favour of the Founder Shareholders out of Company Profits but not distributed by way of dividend shall be accumulated within

such relevant share class and will be reflected in their value. Subject to the payment of the Preferred Return to the Preferred Shareholders, the Founder Shareholders carry the

right to a Founders’ Return as declared by the Directors of the Company.

The Preferred Shares do not carry voting rights but are entitled to the payment of a Preferred Return and do not carry a right to participate in the assets of the Company (including

its sub-funds) on a winding up. Preferred Shares are offered to the Portfolio Managers in terms of the Offering Supplement for each sub-fund. The Preferred Shares can be

redeemed at the option of the Company only and are hence classified as equity in the statement of financial position. 

Associate Shares do not carry any voting rights. 

The Associate Shareholders shall be entitled to receive dividends out of the Company’s profits attributable to Founder shareholders as and when, and to the extent declared by the

directors specifically in favour thereof, provided that the dividend entitlement attached to the Associate Shares shall rank after the dividend entitlement attached to the Preferred

Shares, but prior to the dividend entitlement of the Founder Shares.

Different classes of Preferred Shares have been issued which are held by preferred shareholders. As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, these are divided into 17,580 (2021: 17,580)

Class B Preferred Shares, 6,250 (2021: 6,250) Class C Preferred Shares and 5,000 (2021: 5,000) Class D Preferred Shares. 

Associate Shares amounted to 1,500 as at 30 June 2022 (2021: 1,000). 500 Associate Shares are being subscribed to by Mr Milan Šikut, 500 Associate Shares are being

subscribed to by Mr Pavol Redler and 500 Associate Shares are being subscribed to by Mr Tomáš Lukacovsky.

Class A1 and A2 Founder Shares amounted to 100,000 (2021: 100,000) and are subscribed to Mr Tomáš Martinec, Mr Juraj Podracky and Lovixia Investments Limited which is an

entity owned 75% by Mr Tomáš Martinec and 25% by Mr Juraj Podracky. Overall, as at 30 June 2022 and 2021, 75,000 Founder Shares are owned by Mr Tomáš Martinec (37,500

A1 Shares directly and 37,500 A2 Shares through Lovixia Investments Limited) and 25,000 Founder Shares are owned by Mr Juraj Podracky (12,500 A1 Shares directly and 12,500

A2 Shares through Lovixia Investments Limited).

The Associate Shares may be redeemed at the option of the Company by providing such notice period as it may determine in its sole discretion. In the event of any such

redemption, the holder thereof shall be entitled to the payment of the amount of capital originally paid in by the respective Associate Shareholder upon issuance of the Associate

Shares. During the current year, the Associate Shares have thus been classified as equity in the statement of financial position.

Class B Preferred Shares are subscribed to by Mr Tomáš Martinec, Class C Preferred Shares are subscribed to by Mr Juraj Podracký and Class D Preferred Shares are

subscribed to by Mr Ales Vávra. 

General expenses

As at year end, the Company had 130,330 (2021: 129,830) issued share capital divided as follows:

b) 28,830 (2021: 28,830) Preferred Shares of € 1 each,

a) 100,000 (2021: 100,000) Founder Shares of € 1 each; 

Professional fees (continued)

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements
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10 Capital and reserves (continued)

10.1 Share Capital (continued)

Class A1 Class A2 Total

Balance at 1 July 2021 50,000                          50,000                           100,000                        

Balance at 30 June 2022 50,000                          50,000                           100,000                        

Balance at 1 July 2020 50,000                          50,000                           100,000                        

Balance at 30 June 2021 50,000                          50,000                           100,000                        

Class B Class C Class D Total

Balance at 1 July 2021 17,580                    6,250                            5,000                             28,830                          

Balance at 30 June 2022 17,580                    6,250                            5,000                             28,830                          

Balance at 1 July 2020 17,580                    6,250                            5,000                             28,830                          

Balance at 30 June 2021 17,580                    6,250                            5,000                             28,830                          

Class A Total

Balance at 1 July 2021 1,000                             1,000                            

Issue 500                                500                               

Balance at 30 June 2022 1,500                             1,500                            

Balance at 1 July 2020 1,000                             1,000                            

Balance at 30 June 2021 1,000                             1,000                            

10.2 Dividends

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

€ €

€1.48 (2021: €1.16) per founder share 148,285                         115,932                        

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

€ €

€35.30 (2021: €18.84) per preferred share 1,017,759                      543,070                        

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

€ €

€56 (2021: €54) per associate share 84,000                           54,000                          

30 June 2021

€

€6.10 (2021: €6.50) per preferred share                          187,431                        

11 Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders

Series of Shares methodology

Consolidation of series

Preferred Shares

After the end of financial year, the following dividends were declared by the Company to its shareholders

Investor shares are issued and redeemed based on the Company’s net asset value per share, calculated by dividing the net assets of the Company, calculated in accordance with

the Company's Offering Memorandum, by the number of Investor Shares in issue.

Each Series has identical rights. The Performance Fee payable will vary depending on the time of investment by the Investor, thus resulting in a different NAV per share for each

Series. Thus, depending on when an Investor acquires Shares, such Investor may be charged a Performance Fee for gains in a particular Performance Period while other Investors

in another series, whose Shares are recovering any previous losses, will not be charged a Performance Fee. 

Series of Shares are issued for each class of shares on each Dealing Day within each Performance Period, with the Lead Series being the Series of Shares issued upon the expiry

of the Initial Offer Period. Each Series is designated by reference to their month of issue. Each new Series is issued at the initial price of €100 per Share. On the last Business Day

of a Performance Period, any performance fee accruing and payable for each Series crystallizes. Subsequently, each issued Series in respect of which a Performance Fee has

been charged is consolidated with the Lead Series. The Lead Series will therefore always be in existence. 

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Associate Shares

In order to keep the number of different Series outstanding at any one time to a minimum, all profitable Series of a Sub-Fund may be consolidated into one Series of the particular

Sub-Fund after the close of each calendar quarter. Therefore, at the end of the Performance Period, all series are “rolled up” and converted into the Lead Series so long as there

are no outstanding losses to carry forward.

In the event that a Shareholder redeems or transfers Shares during a performance period, any accrued but unpaid Performance Fee on those Shares will crystallize on the date of

such redemption or transfer.

Investor Shares shall be offered to Eligible Investors for subscription as per the Offering Supplement for each sub-fund. Investor Shares do not have any voting rights (refer also to

note 11). 

Founder Shares

Notes to Financial Statements

The Associate Shareholders shall not be entitled to any other distribution by the Company other than as described above.

Investor shares can be redeemed monthly for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Company’s net asset value attributable to the share class. The investor shares are

classified as financial liabilities and are measured at the present value of the redemption amounts.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

The Associate Shareholders will not be entitled to participate in the assets of the Company (including its Sub-Funds) on a winding up (except repayment of paid up capital following

settlement of any and all amounts due to the holders of Investor Shares and the Associate Shareholders shall rank pari passu amongst themselves in respect of such right of

repayment as aforesaid).
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30 June 2022

  €

176,151

The following dividends were declared by the Company to preferred shareholders during the year.

The following dividends were declared by the Company to associate shareholders during the year.

The following dividends were declared by the Company to founder shareholders during the year.



11 Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders (Continued)

Consolidation of series (continued)

Redemptions

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

An investor who wishes to redeem all or any part of his holding must give the Administrator notice of his intention as specified in the relevant Offering Supplement. If accepted by

the Company, the redemption request will be dealt with on the next Dealing Day at the Net Asset Value per Share of the applicable class/Series established on that day. The

Redemption Price per Share on the relevant Dealing Day will be calculated to 4 decimal places.

If, at the end of the Company’s calendar quarter, any Series has a NAV per share that is either greater than or equal to the higher of (a) €100 or equivalent, (i.e. the purchase price

per share of that Series) and (b) the price per share at which a Performance Fee was last charged (such a Series being a “Profitable Series”), shares of that Profitable Series may

be exchanged for shares of such other Profitable Series then in issue, or of a newly-created Series, as the Company in its discretion selects (the “Selected Series”). Shares of each

Profitable Series outstanding at the end of each calendar quarter generally will be exchanged by redeeming such shares at their then current NAV per share in consideration for the

issue of such number of shares in the Selected Series which has the same aggregate net asset value as the redeemed shares of the Profitable Series on the first day of the

following calendar quarter at the Net Asset Value per share of the Selected Series. Only Profitable Series in a calendar quarter may be consolidated into the Selected Series at the

end of that calendar quarter.

Redemption Notices received after the time specified in the relevant Offering Supplement will be carried over to the following Dealing Day. Furthermore, the Directors may, in

particular circumstances and at their discretion, also accept that a Redemption Notice received on or by a Dealing Day, and will be dealt with at the Net Asset Value per Share of

the applicable Class / Series of such Dealing Day. 

Subject to approval by the investors, the Directors may, at their discretion, satisfy any application for Redemption of Shares by the transfer to those investors of a proportion of the

assets of the relevant Sub-Fund in specie, which proportion is equivalent in value to the shareholding of the investor requesting the Redemption, but adjusted as the Directors may

determine to reflect the liabilities of the Company. 

Payment of the Redemption proceeds will be made by the Company within ten (10) Business Days following the date on which such Shares are redeemed by the Company.

Payment will be made by telegraphic transfer or credit in an account in the name of the registered holder or, in the case of joint holders, in the name of the first named holder. 

Subject to the restrictions appearing in the Offering Memorandum, the Articles of the Company or, the Offering Supplement relating to the relevant Sub-Funds, investors may at any

time request, in writing, that the Company redeems any or all of their Investor Shares in a Sub-Fund. The procedure for the redemption of shares is set out in the relevant Offering

Supplement. 

There will be no change in the aggregate NAV of an Investor’s holding due to the conversion of any Series of Shares into the Lead Series, although a different number of Shares

may be held by such Investor after the conversion.

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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11 Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders (continued)

Share Activity:

Global Macro Fund

As at 30 June 2022 Class C CZK Class C CZK Class C CZK

Lead Series Series 04/12 Series 06/16 Series 12/16 Series 04/17 Series 02/19 Series 09/21 Series10/21

Balance as at 1 July 2021 100,000           100,000                   20,000                   65,000                   20,250                   15,000                   -                            -                             

Issued -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            185,000                 23,984                   

Redeemed -                       -                               (20,000)                  -                            (20,250)                  (15,000)                  -                            -                             

Balance as at 30 June 2022 100,000           100,000                   -                            65,000                   -                            -                            185,000                 23,984                   

As at 30 June 2021 Class C CZK Class C CZK Class C CZK Class C CZK

Lead Series Series 04/12 Series 06/16 Series 12/16 Series 04/17 Series 11/17 Series 11/18 Series 02/19

Balance as at 1 July 2020 100,000           100,000                   20,000                   65,000                   20,250                   200,000                 87,881                   15,000                   

Issued -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             

Redeemed -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            (200,000)                (87,881)                  -                             

Balance as at 30 June 2021 100,000           100,000                   20,000                   65,000                   20,250                   - - 15,000                   

As at 30 June 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset

and Value Value and Value Value and Value Value

outstanding Per share outstanding Per share outstanding Per share

Global Macro Fund

Class C CZK - Series 04/17 -                       -                               -                            20,250                   € 4.60 € 93,184 20,250                   € 3.55 € 71,985

Class C CZK - Series 11/17 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            200,000                 € 3.47 € 693,403

Class C CZK - Series 11/18 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            87,881                   € 3.44 € 302,224

Class C CZK - Series 02/19 -                       -                               -                            15,000                   € 4.51 € 67,603 15,000                   € 3.52 € 52,857

Class C CZK - Series 09/21 185,000           € 4.35 € 804,062 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             -                             

Lead Series 100,000           € 133.94 € 13,393,743 100,000                 € 124.07 € 12,406,897 100,000                 € 100.94 € 10,094,182

Series 04/12 100,000           € 133.66 € 13,365,555 100,000                 € 123.81 € 12,380,785 100,000                 € 100.75 € 10,074,717

Series 06/16 -                       -                               -                            20,000                   € 121.03 € 2,420,693 20,000                   € 97.63 € 1,952,570

Series 12/16 65,000             € 126.78 € 8,240,631 65,000                   € 116.87 € 7,596,633 65,000                   € 93.93 € 6,105,648

Series10/21 23,984             € 108.95 € 2,613,015 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             -                             

€ 38,417,006 € 34,965,795 € 29,347,585
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11 Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders (continued)

Share Activity:

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

As at 30 June 2022 Class E CZK Class E CZK Class F CZK

Lead Series Series 01/15 Series 08/15 Series 10/15 Lead Series Series CZK-09/18 Series CZK-02/17

Balance as at 1 July 2021 80,000             14,955                     2,000                     1,000                     21,451                   30,800                   21,543                   

Issued -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Redeemed (32,000)            -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Balance as at 30 June 2022 48,000             14,955                     2,000                     1,000                     21,451                   30,800                   21,543                   

As at 30 June 2021 Class E CZK

Lead Series Series 01/14 Series 01/15 Series 03/15 Series 08/15 Series 10/15 Series 12/15 Series 08/17 Lead Series

Balance as at 1 July 2020 81,470             1,369                       14,955                   1,050                     2,000                     2,535                     396                        369                        21,451                    

Issued -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                             -                             

Redeemed (1,470)              (1,369)                      -                            (1,050)                    -                            (1,535)                    (396)                       (369)                       -                             

Balance as at 30 June 2021 80,000             -                               14,955                   -                            2,000                     1,000                     -                            -                             21,451                    

Class E CZK Class E CZK Class E CZK Class F CZK Class F CZK Class F CZK Class C USD Class C USD Class C USD

Series CZK-09/16 Series CZK-09/17 Series CZK-09/18 Lead Series Series CZK-02/17 Series CZK-02/19 Lead Series Series USD-09/16 Series USD-08/17

Balance as at 1 July 2020 68,359             36,275                     30,800                   73,839                   63,039                   25,000                   2,990                     1,003                     1,473                     

Issued -                       -                               -                             -   -                            -                            -                            -                             -                             

Redeemed (68,359)            (36,275)                    -                            (73,839)                  (41,496)                  (25,000)                  (2,990)                    (1,003)                    (1,473)                    

Balance as at 30 June 2021 -                       -                               30,800                   -                            21,543                   -                            -                            -                             -                             

As at 30 June 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset

and Value Value and Value Value and Value Value

outstanding Per share outstanding Per share outstanding Per share

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Lead Series 48,000             € 173.71 € 8,338,098 80,000                   € 116.26 € 9,300,541 81,470                   € 113.48 € 9,245,157

Series 01/14 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            1,369                     € 114.66 € 156,994

Series 01/15 14,955             € 155.34 € 2,323,117 14,955                   € 103.96 € 1,554,761 14,955                   € 101.48 € 1,517,615

Series 03/15 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            1,050                     € 97.19 € 101,997

Series 08/15 2,000               € 140.63 € 281,250 2,000                     € 94.11 € 188,229 2,000                     € 91.86 € 183,730

Series 10/15 1,000               € 142.58 € 142,579 1,000                     € 95.39 € 95,422 2,535                     € 93.14 € 236,083

Series 12/15 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            396                        € 91.66 € 36,302

Series 08/17 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            369                        € 91.95 € 33,923

Class E CZK 21,451             € 6.06 € 129,948 21,451                   € 3.87 € 83,035 21,451                   € 3.51 € 75,276

Class E CZK Series 09/16 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            68,359                   € 3.62 € 247,671

Class E CZK Series 09/17 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            36,275                   € 3.61 € 130,948

Class E CZK Series 09/18 30,800             € 6.51 € 200,590 30,800                   € 4.32 € 132,917 30,800                   € 3.91 € 120,496

Class F CZK Series  02/17 21,543             € 6.19 € 133,383 21,543                   € 4.10 € 88,330 63,039                   € 3.72 € 234,314

Class F CZK Series  02/19 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            25,000                   € 3.90 € 97,395

Class C USD Lead Series -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            2,990                     € 92.85 € 277,621

Class C USD Series 09/16 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            1,003                     € 92.48 € 92,752

Class C USD Series 08/17 -                       -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            1,473                     € 87.73 € 129,254

€ 11,548,965 € 11,443,235 € 12,917,530

Notes to Financial Statements

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

For the year ended 30 June 2022
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11 Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders (continued)

Share Activity:

Long-Term Equity

As at 30 June 2022 Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series 

C CZK A EUR D EUR S CHF I EUR E USD

Balance as at 1 July 2021 1,353,360              129,349                 166,604                 5,463                     31,586                   55,517                    

Issued 650,405                 17,066                   113,849                 8,420                     15,545                   9,386                     

Switch 22,658                   2,700                     (4,078)                    -                            -                             -                             

Redeemed (83,127)                  (6,649)                    (16,253)                  -                            (11,887)                  (1,926)                    

Balance as at 30 June 2022 1,943,296              142,466                 260,122                 13,883                   35,244                   62,977                    

As at 30 June 2021 Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series Lead Series 

C CZK A EUR D EUR DN EUR I EUR E USD

Balance as at 1 July 2020 1,092,189              76,770                   100,121                 -                            19,723                   32,041                    

Issued 521,144                 43,833                   85,497                   5,463                     11,863                   23,477                    

Switch -                            10,383                   (12,256)                  -                            -                             -                             

Redeemed (259,973)                (1,637)                    (6,758)                    -                            -                             (1)                           

Balance as at 30 June 2021 1,353,360              129,349                 166,604                 5,463                     31,586                   55,517                    

As at 30 June 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset Shares issued Net Asset Net Asset

and Value Value and Value Value and Value Value

outstanding Per share outstanding Per share outstanding Per share

Long-Term Equity

Lead Series C CZK 1,943,296        € 8.05 € 15,651,745 1,353,360              € 8.68 € 11,743,043 1,092,189              € 5.88 € 6,418,190

Lead Series A EUR 142,466           € 248.69 € 35,429,974 129,349                 € 273.89 € 35,427,633 76,770                   € 192.70 € 14,793,636

Lead Series D EUR 260,122           € 209.70 € 54,546,642 166,604                 € 231.55 € 38,577,494 100,121                 € 163.31 € 16,350,536

Lead Series S CHF 13,883             € 104.49 € 1,450,644 5,463                     € 96.92 € 529,453 -                            -                             -                             

Lead Series I EUR 35,244             € 220.58 € 7,774,285 31,586                   € 242.33 € 7,654,171 19,723                   € 170.08 € 3,354,463

Lead Series E USD 62,977             € 203.06 € 12,787,861 55,517                   € 196.67 € 10,918,592 32,041                   € 144.09 € 4,616,756

€ 127,641,151 € 104,850,386 € 45,533,581

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Notes to Financial Statements
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12 Taxation

13 Related Parties

2022
Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long Long-Term

Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

€ € €

947,620                        10,860                           -                                 

-                                 -                                  164,000                        

947,620                     10,860                        164,000                     

2021
Short Equity

(formerly 

known as Long Long-Term

Global Macro Short Equity) Equity

€ € €

109,084                        -                                     -                                   

15,771                          -                                     244,000                        

124,855                        -                                     244,000                        

2022 2021 2022 2021

€ € € €

Class C (CZK) 74,163.5004                    - Class E (CZK) 30,800.0000                   30,800.0000                 

Class A (EUR) 2,644.7997                      9,991.3158             Class F (CZK) 21,543.6656                   21,543.6656                 

76,808.3001                    9,991.3158             52,343.6656                   52,343.6656                 

However, Maltese resident investors therein may be subject to a 15% final withholding tax on capital gains realised on any redemption, liquidation or cancellation of shares in the

SICAV. Nevertheless, the Maltese resident investor may request the SICAV not to effect the deduction of the said 15% final withholding tax in which case the investor would be

required to declare the gains in his income tax return and will be subject to tax at the normal rates of tax.

Performance fees

As at 30 June 2022, parties related to the respective sub-fund held 2.89% (2021: 1.93%) of the investor shares in Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) and 2.01%

(2021: 2.61%) of the investor shares in Long-Term Equity. 

Management and performance fees incurred during the year and management and performance fees payable at year-end are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements. 

Performance fees

The Company has a related party relationship with its founder shareholders, preferred shareholders, associate shareholders, and its directors and their dependants. Furthermore, it

has a related party relationship with the Investment Advisors by way of common shareholding.

PM Squared Limited receives 35% of the performance fees incurred by Global Macro (refer to note 9) as well as charges Global Macro and Long-Term Equity investment research

fees which amounted to:   

Notes to Financial Statements

Related party transactions and balances

The Company appointed PM Squared Limited, a private limited liability Company incorporated in Bermuda, to implement the investment strategy of Global Macro as specified in the

prospectus. The Investment Advisor contract can be terminated by the Company by giving not less than six months’ notice. 

Investment Research fees

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Investment Research fees

Identity of related parties

Related party shareholdings

The Maltese tax regime for collective investment schemes is based on the classification of funds into prescribed or non-prescribed funds in terms of the conditions set out in the

Collective Investment Schemes (Investment Income) Regulations, 2001 (as amended). In general, a prescribed fund is defined as a resident fund, which has declared that the

value of its assets situated in Malta amount to at least 85% of the value of the total assets of the fund. A non-prescribed fund is a fund, which does not qualify as a prescribed fund.

On the basis that the sub-funds within the SICAV are classified as non-prescribed funds for Maltese income tax purposes, then the sub-funds should not be subject to Maltese

income tax on their income or gains (other than on income (if any) from immovable property situated in Malta).

Any gains or profits derived on any transfer of units in the sub-funds by investors who are not resident in Malta should not be chargeable to Maltese income tax, subject to the

satisfaction of certain statutory conditions.

With respect to any distributions by the SICAV, dividends paid from Malta source taxed profits, Malta source profits which are exempt from tax up to the level of the ultimate

shareholder, or profits received by the SICAV from the Foreign Income Account of another Maltese company, should not be subject to further tax in the hands of the shareholders.

In the case of distributions from the SICAV’s Final Tax Account (if any), the shareholders should not be subject to further tax on such dividends but should not be entitled to claim a

credit or refund of any tax directly or indirectly paid on such profits.

Distributions from the SICAV’s foreign source profits allocated to their Untaxed Account, or distributions of any Malta source profits which are not subject to tax and which are

allocated to their Untaxed Account, to a Maltese resident person (other than a company), or to a non-resident person who is owned or controlled by, or who acts on behalf of, a

person who is ordinarily resident and domiciled in Malta, should be subject to a withholding tax of 15%.

Distributions (if any) from the SICAV’s equalisation reserve are treated as dividends for Maltese income tax purposes and should be subject to a withholding tax of 15% when paid

to a Maltese resident person (other than a company), or to a non-resident person who is owned, or controlled by, or who acts on behalf of a person who is ordinarily resident and

domiciled in Malta.

In the case of the SICAV’s foreign investments, any capital gains, dividends, interest and other gains or profits may be subject to tax imposed by the country of origin concerned

and such taxes may not be recoverable by the SICAV or by its shareholders under Maltese domestic tax law.

The redemption, or any other transfer of shares and any distribution on winding-up of the sub-funds may result in a tax liability for the shareholders according to the tax regime

applicable in their respective countries of incorporation, establishment, residence, citizenship, nationality, domicile or other relevant jurisdiction.

The portfolio manager of the fund held the following units in Metatron SICAV:

Metatron Long-Term Equity Fund Metatron Short Equity Fund

Metatron Capital SICAV plc
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13 Related Parties (continued)

14 Significant Events

15 Subsequent Events

€
-                                      

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) 791,270                           

1,678,880                        

2,470,150                        

16 Comparative Information

Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022

All approved net subscriptions received and redemptions settled after year end up to the date of approval of these financial statements from each of the sub-funds were:

Transactions with key management personnel

Due to the outbreak of conflict between Russia and the Ukraine, followed by new sanctions announced by the U.S. and the EU countries against Russia, the Fund has assessed

the relevant risk factors relating to its business, results of operations and financial condition in a holistic approach. The Fund has no business flows with Russian and Ukrainian

counterparties and service providers nor with Russian banks and, therefore, is not negatively affected as of the date of the approval of these financial statements.

The total director’s fees for the year were €23,000 (2021: €23,696). The total outstanding directors' fees were €5,479 (2021: €5,751) at year-end. The listing of the members of the

board of directors is shown on page 2 of the Annual Report.

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Global Macro

During the year, one of the directors provided consultancy services to the Company amounting to €28,711 (2021: €27,120).

Long-Term Equity 
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                                                            On 6 October 2021, Tomas Martinec has resigned as a portfolio manager of the Metatron Global Macro Fund due to his other involvement in JaT Investment Company. On 10 May 

2022, Juraj Podracky and on 16 May 2022 Pavol Redler were appointed as portfolio managers of this sub-fund.

Comparative figures disclosed in the main components of these financial statements have been classified to conform with the current year's disclosure format for the purpose of 

compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).



Further Information

1 Risk Warning

2 Offering document and fund particulars supplement

3 Condensed Schedule of Investments

Global Macro Fund

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds

Consumer, Cyclical 803,168                  2.09% 7,960,794                      22.77%

Consumer, Non-cyclical 289,791                  0.75% -                                     0.00%

Commodities 420,981                  1.10% -                                     0.00%

Energy 6,738,076               17.54% 2,948,449                      8.43%

Financial 15,101,624             39.31% 13,486,074                    38.57%

Government 405,486                  1.06% 690,686                         1.98%

Industrial 2,645,263               6.89% 3,764,818                      10.77%

26,404,389             68.73% 28,850,821                    82.52%

Equities

Basic Materials 1,066,618               2.78% 586,982                         1.68%

Commodities -                             0.00% 337,785                         0.97%

Energy 3,825,749               9.96% 576,768                         1.65%

Materials 69,561                    0.18% -                                     0.00%

4,961,928               12.92% 1,501,535                      4.30%

Derivatives

Put options -                             0.00% 26,535                           0.08%

Futures diversified 113,373                  0.30% 614,570                         1.79%

Future option 62,438                    0.16% -                                     0.00%

Forward currency contracts 335,581                  0.87% 347,804                         0.99%

511,392                  1.33% 988,909                         2.86%

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 31,877,709             82.98% 31,341,264                    89.68%

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities

Technology -                             0.00% (34,392)                          (0.10%)

-                             0.00% (34,392)                          (0.10%)

Derivatives

Put options -                             0.00% (57,135)                          (0.16%)

Futures diversified (375,137)                 (0.98%) (508,933)                        (1.46%)

Forward currency contracts (361,078)                 (0.94%) (264,238)                        (0.76%)

(736,215)                 (1.92%) (830,306)                        (2.37%)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (736,215)                 (1.92%) (864,698)                        (2.47%)

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity)

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities

Communications 68,833                    0.60% -                                 0.00%

Consumer, Cyclical 253,100                  2.19% 24,911                           0.22%

Consumer, Non-cyclical 83,135                    0.72% 184,088                         1.61%

Energy 164,166                  1.42% 1,819,368                      15.90%

Materials 515,834                  4.47% 79,946                           0.70%

Technology -                             0.00% 411,882                         3.60%

1,085,068               9.40% 2,520,195                      22.02%

Derivatives

Forward currency contracts -                             0.00% 5,990                             0.05%

Call Options 100                         0.00% 9,846                             0.09%

Put Options 120,524                  1.04% 87,523                           0.76%

120,624                  1.04% 103,359                         0.90%

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,205,692               10.44% 2,623,554                      22.93%

Past performance is not necessarily a guide to future performance. The value of investments and the currency in which these are denominated may go down as well as up and

investors may not always get back their initial investment. Investments in collective investment schemes should be regarded as a medium to long-term investment.

30 June 2021

Further information - Unaudited 

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Full information on the Company is contained in the Offering Document and the Funds Particulars Supplements which are available from the registered office of the Company or the

Investment Manager. 

30 June 2022

30 June 2021

This Annual Report does not constitute an offer of units in the Company. The opinions expressed are given in good faith and should not be construed as investment and/or tax

advice. 

30 June 2022

Metatron Capital SICAV plc

Alternative Investor Funds are non-retail schemes. Therefore, the protection normally arising as a result of the imposition of the Malta Financial Services Authority’s investment and

borrowing restrictions and other requirements for retail schemes either do not apply or apply only to a small degree. Investors in Alternative Investor Funds are not protected by any

statutory compensation arrangements in the event of the Company’s failure. 
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Further Information (continued)

3 Condensed Schedule of Investments (continued)

Short Equity (formerly known as Long-Short Equity) (continued)

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities

Communications (236,751)                 (2.05%) (248,873)                        (2.17%)

Consumer, Cyclical -                             0.00% (512,113)                        (4.48%)

Consumer, Non-cyclical (1,099,695)              (9.52%) -                                     0.00%

Financial (2,395,477)              (20.74%) (374,272)                        (3.27%)

Industrial (558,642)                 (4.84%) -                                     0.00%

Real Estate -                             0.00% (418,000)                        (3.65%)

Technology (2,306,903)              (19.97%) (208,897)                        (1.83%)

Energy -                             0.00% (183,310)                        (1.60%)

Other -                             0.00% (70,466)                          (0.62%)

(6,597,468)              (57.13%) (2,015,930)                     (17.62%)

Derivatives

Call Options (37,351)                   (0.32%) (16,665)                          (0.15%)

Put Options -                             0.00% (8,222)                            (0.07%)

Forward currency contracts (91,549)                   (0.79%) (23,349)                          (0.20%)

(128,900)                 (1.12%) (48,236)                          (0.42%)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (6,726,368)              (58.24%) (2,064,166)                     (18.04%)

Long-Term Equity

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Bonds

Financial 879,718                  0.69% 515,601                         0.49%

Industrial 308,949                  0.24% 356,352                         0.34%

1,188,667               0.93% 871,953                         0.83%

Equities

Automotive -                             0.00% 2,715,354                      2.59%

Basic Materials 8,098,517               6.34% 5,513,438                      5.26%

Biotech & Pharma -                             0.00% 197,449                         0.19%

Building Materials 395,074                  0.31% 591,668                         0.56%

Chemicals 1,629,231               1.28% 2,192,057                      2.09%

Communications 7,577,334               5.94% 3,189,280                      3.04%

Consumer, Cyclical 8,222,859               6.44% 2,710,039                      2.58%

Consumer, Non-cyclical 17,970,418             14.08% 16,406,151                    15.65%

Energy 20,339,646             15.94% 1,811,841                      1.73%

Financial 10,837,121             8.49% 8,904,876                      8.49%

Funds -                             0.00% 286,984                         0.27%

Health Care 5,770,247               4.52% 5,560,386                      5.30%

Household Products -                             0.00% 850,602                         0.81%

Industrial 14,335,325             11.23% 7,770,850                      7.41%

Materials 1,308,012               1.02% -                                     0.00%

Packaged Foods -                             0.00% 209,395                         0.20%

Services 1,803,623               1.41% 2,492,047                      2.38%

Technology 22,660,787             17.75% 20,122,564                    19.19%

Telecommunication Services 3,265,257               2.56% 68,764                           0.07%

Utilities 1,227,349               0.96% 878,433                         0.84%

Other -                             0.00% 20,050,155                    19.12%

125,440,800           98.28% 102,522,333                   97.77%

Derivatives

Futures diversified 148,262                  0.12% 61,203                           0.06%

Futures options 17,474                    0.01% -                                     0.00%

Forward currency contracts 2,725,397               2.14% 281,538                         0.27%

Call Options 167,112                  0.13% 32,257                           0.03%

Put Options 60,664                    0.05% -                                     0.00%

Swap 58,847                    0.05% -                                     0.00%

3,177,756               2.49% 374,998                         0.36%

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 129,807,223           101.70% 103,769,284                   99.00%

Long-Term Equity

Fair Value % of Net Assets Fair Value % of Net Assets

€ €
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Equities

Funds (587,419)                 (0.46%) -                                     0.00%

Industrial -                             0.00% (158,562)                        (0.15%)

(587,419)                 (0.46%) (158,562)                        (0.15%)

Derivatives

Futures diversified (415,490)                 (0.33%) (94,709)                          (0.09%)

Futures options (49,447)                   (0.04%) -                                     0.00%

Call Options (1,507)                     (0.00%) (20,223)                          (0.02%)

Put Options (86,914)                   (0.07%) (9,472)                            (0.01%)

Forward currency contracts (10,640,256)            (8.34%) (931,762)                        (0.89%)

Swap (143,503)                 (0.11%) -                                     0.00%

(11,337,117)            (8.88%) (1,056,166)                     (1.00%)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (11,924,536)            (9.34%) (1,214,728)                     (1.15%)

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Further information - Unaudited (continued)

Metatron Capital SICAV plc
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